
 

 
 

Peter Sloman 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

 
Civic Offices, Bridge Street, 
Reading RG1 2LU 
 0118 937 3787 

 

 
CIVIC OFFICES EMERGENCY EVACUATION: If an alarm sounds, leave by the nearest fire exit quickly and calmly 
and assemble on the corner of Bridge Street and Fobney Street.  You will be advised when it is safe to re-enter 
the building. 

www.reading.gov.uk | www.facebook.com/ReadingCouncil | www.twitter.com/ReadingCouncil 

To: Councillors Woodward (Chair) and 
Edwards (Vice-Chair) 
 

 Direct:  0118 937 2368 
e-mail: 
julie.quarmby@reading.gov.uk 
 
22 June 2022 

 
Your contact is: Julie Quarmby - Committee Services 
 
NOTICE OF MEETING - LICENSING APPLICATIONS SUB-COMMITTEE 2 - 30 JUNE 2022 
 
A meeting of the Licensing Applications Sub-Committee 2 will be held on Thursday, 30 June 
2022 at 9.30 am in the Council Chamber, Civic Offices, Bridge Street, Reading, RG1 2LU. The 
Agenda for the meeting is set out below. 
 
 ACTION WARDS 

AFFECTED 
Page No 

 
1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

  

 
(a) Councillors to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests they 
may have in relation to the items for consideration; 

(b) Councillors to declare whether they wish to speak on the 
grounds they: 

(i) Have submitted a relevant representation as an interested party; 
or 
(ii) Will be speaking on behalf of an interested party. 
 

  

2. APPLICATION FOR THE GRANT OF A PREMISES LICENCE, 
BOWL CENTRAL, 65 CAVERSHAM ROAD, READING 

 

ABBEY 3 - 66 

 To consider an application for the grant of a Premises 
Licence in respect of Bowl Central, 65 Caversham Road, 
Reading, RG1 8AD. 
 

  

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



LICENSING ACT 2003 HEARING THURSDAY 30 JUNE 2022 @ 0930HRS 
APPLICATION FOR THE GRANT OF A PREMISES LICENCE  

1. Premises:

Bowl Central 
65 Caversham Road 
Reading 
RG1 8AD 

2. Applicant:

KTO (Reading) Ltd 

3. Background:

There is currently no licence in force at this location. The premises was most 
recently a music shop selling musical instruments and associated products. 
Previously, a premises licence application from a different applicant to authorise the 
sale by retail of alcohol and other licensable activities between 1000hrs and 0600hrs 
was refused at a sub-committee 1 hearing on 11/12/2007. 

The application has been submitted by KTO (Reading) Ltd and is attached as 
Appendix RS-1 

4. Proposed licensable activities and hours:

The application is for the grant of a premises licence for the following activities: 

Provision of Recorded Music 

Sunday to Thursday  from 1000hrs to 0000hrs 
Friday to Saturday            from 1000hrs to 0100hrs 
From the start of permitted hours on New Year's Eve to 0100hrs on New Year's Day 

Provision of Late Night Refreshment 

Sunday to Thursday  from 2300hrs to 0000hrs 
Friday to Saturday   from 2300hrs to 0100hrs 
From the 2300hrs on New Year's Eve to 0100hrs on New Year's Day 

Sale by Retail of Alcohol (On the Premises) 

Sunday to Thursday  from 1000hrs to 0000hrs 
Friday to Saturday   from 1000hrs to 0100hrs 
From the start of permitted hours on New Year's Eve to 0100hrs on New Year's Day 

Opening Hours 

Sunday to Thursday  from 1000hrs to 0030hrs 
Friday to Saturday   from 1000hrs to 0130hrs 
From the start of permitted hours on New Year's Eve to 0130hrs on New Year's Day 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



5.  Temporary Event Notices 

In considering any application the Licensing Authority should be aware of the possible 
use of Temporary Event Notices to authorise licensable activities. A premises can 
extend the hours or scope of their operation by the use of Temporary Event Notices.  
Up to 15 events per year (or 20 events in 2022 & 2023 only) can be held under this 
provision at a particular premises. These events may last for up to 168 hours 
provided less than 500 people are accommodated and provided the total number of 
days used for these events does not exceed 21 (or 26 in 2022 & 2023) per calendar 
year.  

 

6.  Date of receipt of application:  26 April 2022 

 

7. Date of closure of period for representations: 24 May 2022 

 

8.  Representations received: 

During the 28 day consultation period for the application, representations were 
received from:  
 
1. Mr Peter Narancic – Reading Borough Council - Licensing – Attached as Appendix 

RS-2  
2. Mr Declan Smyth – Thames Valley Police – Licensing - Attached as Appendix RS-3 
3. Mr David Neale – Bell Tower Community Association – Attached as Appendix RS-4 

 

9. Powers of the Authority in determining an application for the grant of a 
premises licence 

The Licensing authority, when determining an application for the grant of a premises 
licence may: 
 

• Grant the application as applied for 

• Grant the application with modifications 

• Refuse the application 

 

10.  Licensing Objectives and Reading Borough Council’s Licensing Policy 
Statement 

In considering representations received the Licensing Authority has a duty to carry 
out it’s functions with a view to promoting the four licensing objectives, which are as 
follows: 
 

• The Prevention of Crime and Disorder 

• Public Safety 

• The Prevention of Public Nuisance 

• The Protection of Children from Harm 
 
Any conditions that are placed on a premises licence should be appropriate and 
proportionate with a view to promoting the licensing objectives. The Licensing 
Authority can amend, alter or refuse an application should it be deemed appropriate 
for the promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
In determining this application, the Licensing Authority must also have regard to the 

Page 4



representations received, the Licensing Authority’s statement of licensing policy and 
any relevant section of the statutory guidance to licensing authorities. 

 

11. Amended Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 (April 
2018) 

 
Licensing Objectives and Aims: 
 
1.2 The legislation provides a clear focus on the promotion of four statutory 
objectives which must be addressed when licensing functions are undertaken.  

1.3 The licensing objectives are: 
  

• The Prevention of Crime and Disorder 

• Public Safety 

• The Prevention of Public Nuisance 

• The Protection of Children from Harm 
  
1.4 Each objective is of equal importance. There are no other statutory licensing 
objectives, so that the promotion of the four objectives is a paramount consideration 
at all times.  
 
1.5 However, the legislation also supports a number of other key aims and purposes. 
These are vitally important and should be principal aims for everyone involved in 
licensing work. They include: 
 
• protecting the public and local residents from crime, anti-social behaviour and 
noise nuisance caused by irresponsible licensed premises. 
 
Steps to promote the licensing objectives: 
 
8.41 In completing an operating schedule, applicants are expected to have regard to 
the statement of licensing policy for their area. They must also be aware of the 
expectations of the licensing authority and the responsible authorities as to the steps 
that are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives, and to 
demonstrate knowledge of their local area when describing the steps they propose to 
take to promote the licensing objectives. Licensing authorities and responsible 
authorities are expected to publish information about what is meant by the 
promotion of the licensing objectives and to ensure that applicants can readily access 
advice about these matters. However, applicants are also expected to undertake 
their own enquiries about the area in which the premises are situated to inform the 
content of the application. 
 
8.42 Applicants are, in particular, expected to obtain sufficient information to 
enable them to demonstrate, when setting out the steps they propose to take to 
promote the licensing objectives, that they understand: 
 
• the layout of the local area and physical environment including crime and disorder 
hotspots, proximity to residential premises and proximity to areas where children 
may congregate; 

Page 5



 
• any risk posed to the local area by the applicants’ proposed licensable activities; 
and 
 
• any local initiatives (for example, local crime reduction initiatives or voluntary 
schemes including local taxi-marshalling schemes, street pastors and other schemes) 
which may help to mitigate potential risks. 
 
8.44 It is expected that enquiries about the locality will assist applicants when 
determining the steps that are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing 
objectives. For example, premises with close proximity to residential premises should 
consider what effect this will have on their smoking, noise management and dispersal 
policies to ensure the promotion of the public nuisance objective. Applicants must 
consider all factors which may be relevant to the promotion of the licensing 
objectives, and where there are no known concerns, acknowledge this in their 
application. 
 
8.45 The majority of information which applicants will require should be available in 
the licensing policy statement in the area. Other publicly available sources which 
may be of use to applicants include: 
 
• the Crime Mapping website; 
• Neighbourhood Statistics websites; 
• websites or publications by local responsible authorities; 
• websites or publications by local voluntary schemes and initiatives; and 
• on-line mapping tools. 
 
8.46 While applicants are not required to seek the views of responsible authorities 
before formally submitting their application, they may find them to be a useful 
source of expert advice on local issues that should be taken into consideration when 
making an application. Licensing authorities may wish to encourage co-operation 
between applicants, responsible authorities and, where relevant, local residents and 
businesses before applications are submitted in order to minimise the scope for 
disputes to arise. 
 
8.47 Applicants are expected to provide licensing authorities with sufficient 
information in this section to determine the extent to which their proposed steps are 
appropriate to promote the licensing objectives in the local area. Applications must 
not be based on providing a set of standard conditions to promote the licensing 
objectives and applicants are expected to make it clear why the steps they are 
proposing are appropriate for the premises. 
 
8.48 All parties are expected to work together in partnership to ensure that the 
licensing objectives are promoted collectively. Where there are no disputes, the 
steps that applicants propose to take to promote the licensing objectives, as set out 
in the operating schedule, will very often translate directly into conditions that will 
be attached to premises licences with the minimum of fuss. 
 
8.49 For some premises, it is possible that no measures will be appropriate to 
promote one or more of the licensing objectives, for example, because they are 

Page 6



adequately covered by other existing legislation. It is however important that all 
operating schedules should be precise and clear about the measures that are 
proposed to promote each of the licensing objectives. 
 
The role of responsible authorities 
 
9.12 Each responsible authority will be an expert in their respective field, and in 
some cases, it is likely that a particular responsible authority will be the licensing 
authority’s main source of advice in relation to a particular licensing objective. For 
example, the police have a key role in managing the night-time economy and should 
have good working relationships with those operating in their local area5. The police 
should usually therefore be the licensing authority’s main source of advice on 
matters relating to the promotion of the crime and disorder licensing objective. 
However, any responsible authority under the 2003 Act may make representations 
with regard to any of the licensing objectives if they have evidence to support such 
representations. Licensing authorities must therefore consider all relevant 
representations from responsible authorities carefully, even where the reason for a 
particular responsible authority’s interest or expertise in the promotion of a 
particular objective may not be immediately apparent. However, it remains 
incumbent on all responsible authorities to ensure that their representations can 
withstand the scrutiny to which they would be subject at a hearing.  
 
Hearings 
 
9.39 The licensing authority should give its decision within five working days of the 
conclusion of the hearing (or immediately in certain specified cases) and provide 
reasons to support it. This will be important if there is an appeal by any of the 
parties. Notification of a decision must be accompanied by information on the right 
of the party to appeal. After considering all the relevant issues, the licensing 
authority may grant the application subject to such conditions that are consistent 
with the operating schedule. Any conditions imposed must be appropriate for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives; there is no power for the licensing authority to 
attach a condition that is merely aspirational. For example, conditions may not be 
attached which relate solely to the health of customers rather than their direct 
physical safety. Any conditions added to the licence must be those imposed at the 
hearing or those agreed when a hearing has not been necessary.  
 
9.40 Alternatively, the licensing authority may refuse the application on the grounds 
that this is appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. It may also 
refuse to specify a designated premises supervisor and/or only allow certain 
requested licensable activities. In the interests of transparency, the licensing 
authority should publish hearings procedures in full on its website to ensure that 
those involved have the most current information.  
 
Determining actions that are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing 
objectives  
 
9.42 Licensing authorities are best placed to determine what actions are appropriate 
for the promotion of the licensing objectives in their areas. All licensing 
determinations should be considered on a case-by-case basis. They should take into 

Page 7



account any representations or objections that have been received from responsible 
authorities or other persons, and representations made by the applicant or premises 
user as the case may be.  

9.43 The authority’s determination should be evidence-based, justified as being 
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives and proportionate to what 
it is intended to achieve.  
 
Licensing Act 2003 
 
The Licensing Act 2003 under Section 18 (6) also states that any relevant 
representation should be considered in the context of: 
 
(a) the likely effect of the grant of the premises licence on the promotion of the 
licensing objectives. 
 
Therefore, in the context of the grant of a licence, it is reasonable for the Licensing 
Authority to base its decision on an application on what the likely effects of granting 
a licence would have on the promotion of the licensing objectives. 

 

12. The Council’s Licensing Policy Statement (2018): 

 
1.6 The predominantly urban nature of Reading as a town means that an 
appropriate balance needs to be struck between the needs of local business and 
the needs of local residents. This licensing policy seeks to encourage all 
stakeholders to engage in the licensing process so that the needs of all can be 
taken into account and issues dealt with in a spirit of partnership and cooperation. 
 
3. Licensing and integration with other legislation 
 
3.1 Many other pieces of legislation impact directly or indirectly on the licensing 
regime. The Licensing Authority must have regard to the following when it 
discharges its responsibilities under the Licensing Act 2003 and in relation to the 
promotion of the four licensing objectives: 
 
Crime and Disorder Act 1998 
 
3.2 This Act requires local authorities and other bodies to consider crime and 
disorder reduction. Section 17 of the Act states that it shall be the duty of each 
authority, to exercise its various functions with due regard to the likely effect of 
the exercise of those functions on, and the need to do all that it reasonably can to 
prevent, crime and disorder in its area (including anti social and other behaviour) 
adversely affecting the local environment. This links specifically with the licensing 
objective of prevention of crime and disorder and the licensing authority will take 
into account all reasonable measures that actively promote this licensing 
objective. 
 
5. Licensing Applications 
 
Grant and Full Variations 

Page 8



 
5.6 During the 28-day consultation period, the authority will scrutinise the 
application along with all of the other Responsible Authorities to judge whether it 
undermines the promotion of the licensing objectives. The application will be made 
available to any person who requests to see it. As per Section 18 (6) of the 
Licensing Act 2003, it will consider the likely effect of granting any licence on the 
promotion of the licensing objectives. The authority will expect all applicants to 
have taken cognisance of the Secretary of State’s Guidance; local strategies and 
initiatives; this policy and any other known local issues before submitting their 
application and that these matters are addressed within the operating schedule of 
the application. 
 
5.7 Whilst many applications will be resolved without the need for a committee 
hearing, any matters or representations that are not resolved will trigger a hearing 
before the properly constituted Licensing Applications Committee for 
determination. 
 
6. Licensing Conditions 
 
General Approach 
 
6.1 Conditions shall be appropriate and proportionate for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives and shall be unambiguous and clear in their stated aims. 
Conditions will also be tailored to the type, location and characteristics of the 
particular premises and the relevant licensable activities. Any condition imposed 
by the Authority shall also aim to avoid duplication of other legislation unless there 
is a requirement to impose such a condition in order to promote the licensing 
objectives (for example, a capacity limit for public safety reasons). This shall apply 
to all relevant applications (grant/variation of a premises licence or club premises 
certificate) 
 
6.2 The operating schedule within an application should contain an assessment 
from the proposed licence holder of what they believe are appropriate and 
proportionate measures to enable them to carry out their proposed licensable 
activities. This assessment should be arrived at by taking cognisance of this policy 
and the Secretary of State’s guidance which outlines the matters that an applicant 
should take into account such as issues in the locality and why their proposed 
measures are suitable for their proposed operation. 
 
6.5 Any conditions imposed upon a premises licence or club premises certificate 
will be tailored to that type of premises and the style of operation. Consideration 
will also be given to the locality of the premises; issues in the locality; the issues 
set out in the Guidance and any policy, initiative or other matter the licensing 
authority wishes to take into account in order to promote the four licensing 
objectives. 
 
7. Licensing Hours 
 
General Approach 
 

Page 9



7.2 When an application receives representations, the authority may consider 
reducing the opening hours and times for licensable activities if it considers it 
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
Licensed Premises in Residential Areas 
 
7.6 When dealing with applications and issuing licences, the authority is likely to 
impose stricter conditions on premises operating in residential areas if it considers 
it appropriate and proportionate to do so. This will apply to all premises types. 
 
7.8 Premises that wish to provide regulated entertainment may be subject to 
additional conditions to ensure that residents are not disturbed. This may include 
the use of sound limiters; keeping doors and windows closed and restricting the 
hours when music is played. 
 
7.11 Premises that are planning to put on events that involve regulated 
entertainment may be required to provide the authority with a detailed event 
management plan of that event which may include a detailed noise risk 
assessment. 
 
7.12 The licensing authority will seek the input of the Council’s Environmental 
Protection and Nuisance team when looking at measures that may be appropriate 
for the prevention of public nuisance. This will include taking cognisance of any 
representations that are submitted as part of the application process or any 
enforcement action they have taken under their own legislation – such as noise 
abatement notices. 
 
8. Children in Licensed Premises 
 
8.6 The Authority will expect all licence holders or premises that wish to allow 
children on to their premises to ensure that access is restricted where appropriate. 
This would include, ensuring that all children are accompanied and that they do 
not have access to or sight of alcohol. 
 
10. Administration, Exercise and Delegation of Functions 
 
10.1 The powers of the Licensing Authority under the Licensing Act 2003 may be 
carried out by the Licensing Committee; by a Sub Committee or by one or more 
officers acting under delegated authority. The Licensing Committee will consist of 
between 10-15 members and the committee may establish one or more sub-
committees consisting of two or three members. 
 
10.3 A Licensing Sub-Committee shall hear all applications where relevant 
representations have been received and applications for the review of a premises 
licence that may have been submitted by Responsible Authorities or any other 
persons. 

 
 
 
 

Page 10



 

13. Relevant Case law for consideration: 

(R) on the application of Hope and Glory Public House v Westminster City Council 
(2011) EWCA Civ31 illustrates that licensed premises, and the activities that take 
place in those premises, exist in a dynamic environment, and should not be looked at 
entirely in isolation and confirms that this can include the impact that licensable 
activities have on a range of factors such as crime, the quality of life for residents 
and visitors to the area, and demand for licensed premises.  

 
East Lindsey District Council v Abu Hanif (t/a Zara’s Restaurant) (2016) this underpins 
the principles widely acknowledged within the Licensing Act 2003 that the licensing 
objectives are prospective, and that the prevention of crime and disorder requires a 
prospective consideration of what is warranted in the public interest, having regard 
to the twin considerations of prevention and deterrence. 

 

14. Appendices              

Appendix RS-1: Premises Licence Application Form 
Appendix RS-2: Representation from Mr Peter Narancic – Reading Borough Council 
     - Licensing 
Appendix RS-3: Representation from Mr Declan Smyth – Thames Valley Police – 
              - Licensing 
Appendix RS-4: Representation from Mr David Neale – Bell Tower Community 
       Association 

 
 

Page 11



Appendix RS-1

Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

Entitlement to work/immigration status for individual applicants and applications from partnerships which are not 
limited liability partnerships:  
A licence may not be held by an individual or an individual in a partnership who is resident in the UK who:  

 • does not have the right to live and work in the UK; or  
 • is subject to a condition preventing him or her from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable 
 activity.  

Any premises licence issued in respect of an application made on or after 6 April 2017 will become invalid if the holder 
ceases to be entitled to work in the UK.  
Applicants must demonstrate that they have an entitlement to work in the UK and are not subject to a condition preventing 
them from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity. They do this in one of two ways: 1) by providing 
with this application copies or scanned copies of the documents listed below (which do not need to be certified), or 2) by 
providing their 'share code' to enable the licensing authority to carry out a check using the Home Office online right to work 
checking service (see below). 
Documents which demonstrate entitlement to work in the UK 

 • An expired or current passport showing the holder, or a person named in the passport as the child of the 
 holder, is A British citizen or a citizen of the UK and Colonies having the right of abode in the UK [please see 
 note below about which sections of the passport to copy].  

 • An expired or current passport or national identity card showing the holder, or a person named in the passport 
 as the child of the holder, is a national of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland.  

 • A Registration Certificate or document certifying permanent residence issued by the Home Office to a national 
 of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland.  
 • A Permanent Residence Card issued by the Home Office to the family member of a national of a European  
 Economic Area country or Switzerland.  

 • A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by the Home Office to the 
 holder indicating that the person named is allowed to stay indefinitely in the UK, or has no time limit on their  
 stay in the UK. 

 • A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is exempt from immigration control, is allowed to stay 
 indefinitely in the UK, has the right of abode in the UK, or has no time limit on their stay in the UK. 

• A current Immigration Status Document issued by the Home Office to the holder with an endorsement
 indicating that the named person is allowed to stay indefinitely in the UK or has no time limit on their stay in 
 the UK, when produced in combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National  
 Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.  

• A birth or adoption certificate issued in the UK, when produced in combination with an official document
 giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency 
 or a previous employer. 

• A birth or adoption certificate issued in the Channel Islands, the Isle of Man or Ireland when produced in 
 combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their  
 name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer. 

• A certificate of registration or naturalisation as a British citizen, when produced in combination with an
 official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their name issued by a  
 Government agency or a previous employer. 

Page 26



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

• A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is allowed to stay in the UK and is currently allowed to
 work and is not subject to a condition preventing the holder from doing work relating to the carrying on of a  
 licensable activity.  

• A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by the Home Office to the
 holder which indicates that the named person can currently stay in the UK and is allowed to work relation to  
 the carrying on of a licensable activity. 

• A current Residence Card issued by the Home Office to a person who is not a national of a European Economic 
 Area state or Switzerland but who is a family member of such a national or who has derivative rights or 
 residence. 

• A current Immigration Status Document containing a photograph issued by the Home Office to the holder 
 with an endorsement indicating that the named person may stay in the UK, and is allowed to work and is not  
 subject  to a condition preventing the holder from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity  
 when produced in combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance  
 number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer. 

• A Certificate of Application, less than 6 months old, issued by the Home Office under regulation 18(3) or 20(2)  
 of the Immigration (European Economic Area) Regulations 2016, to a  person who is not a national of a  
 European Economic Area  state or Switzerland but who is a family member of such a national or who has  
 derivative rights of residence.  

• Reasonable evidence that the person has an outstanding application to vary their permission to be in the UK 
 with the Home Office such as the Home Office acknowledgement letter or proof of postage evidence, or  
 reasonable evidence that the person has an appeal or administrative review pending on an immigration  
 decision, such as an appeal or administrative review reference number. 

• Reasonable evidence that a person who is not a national of a European Economic Area state or Switzerland but 
 who is a family member of such a national or who has derivative rights of residence in exercising treaty rights in 
 the UK including:-  

• evidence of the applicant’s own identity – such as a passport, 
• evidence of their relationship with the European Economic Area family member – e.g. a marriage 
 certificate, civil partnership certificate or birth certificate, and 
• evidence that the European Economic Area national has a right of permanent residence in the UK or is one 
 of the following if they have been in the UK for more than 3 months: 

(i) working e.g. employment contract, wage slips, letter from the employer, 
(ii) self-employed e.g. contracts, invoices, or audited accounts with a bank, 
(iii) studying e.g. letter from the school, college or university and evidence of sufficient funds; or 
(iv) self-sufficient e.g. bank statements. 

Family members of European Economic Area nationals who are studying or financially independent must also provide 
evidence that the European Economic Area national and any family members hold comprehensive sickness insurance in the 
UK. This can include a private medical insurance policy, an EHIC card or an S1, S2 or S3 form. 
Original documents must not be sent to licensing authorities. If the document copied is a passport, a copy of the 
following pages should be provided:- 
(i) any page containing the holder’s personal details including nationality; 
(ii) any page containing the holder’s photograph; 
(iii) any page containing the holder’s signature; 
(iv) any page containing the date of expiry; and 
(v) any page containing information indicating the holder has permission to enter or remain in the UK and is permitted to 
work.  
 

Page 27



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

If the document is not a passport, a copy of the whole document should be provided. 
Your right to work will be checked as part of your licensing application and this could involve us checking your immigration 
status with the Home Office. We may otherwise share information with the Home Office. Your licence application will not be 
determined until you have complied with this guidance.  
  
 Home Office online right to work checking service 
  
As an alternative to providing a copy of the documents listed above, applicants may demonstrate their right to work by 
allowing the licensing authority to carry out a check with the Home Office online right to work checking service.  
  
To demonstrate their right to work via the Home Office online right to work checking service, applicants should include in 
this application their 9-digit share code (provided to them upon accessing the service at https://www.gov.uk/prove-right-
to-work) which, along with the applicant's date of birth (provided within this application), will allow the licensing authority 
to carry out the check.  
  
In order to establish the applicant's right to work, the check will need to indicate that the applicant is allowed to work in the 
United Kingdom and is not subject to a condition preventing them from doing work relating to the carrying on of a 
licensable activity. 
  
An online check will not be possible in all circumstances because not all applicants will have an immigration status that can 
be checked online. The Home Office online right to work checking service sets out what information and/or documentation 
applicants will need in order to access the service. Applicants who are unable to obtain a share code from the service 
should submit copy documents as set out above.  
 

Section 20 of 21

NOTES ON REGULATED ENTERTAINMENT

Page 28



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

In terms of specific regulated entertainments please note that:  

• Plays: no licence is required for performances between 08:00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience 
 does not exceed 500. 

• Films: no licence is required for ‘not-for-profit’ film exhibition held in community premises  between 08.00 and 
 23.00 on any day provided that the audience does not exceed 500 and the organiser (a) gets consent to the  
 screening from a person who is responsible for the premises; and (b) ensures that each such screening abides  
 by age classification ratings. 

• Indoor sporting events: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided 
 that the audience does not exceed 1000.     

• Boxing or Wrestling Entertainment:  no licence is required for a contest, exhibition or display of Greco-Roman 
 wrestling, or freestyle wrestling between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not  
 exceed 1000. Combined fighting sports – defined as a contest, exhibition or display which combines boxing or  
 wrestling with one or more martial arts – are licensable as a boxing or wrestling entertainment rather than an  
 indoor sporting event. 

• Live music: no licence permission is required for:
o a performance of unamplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, on any premises. 
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to sell  
 alcohol for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500. 
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a workplace that is not  
 licensed to sell alcohol on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.  
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village hall,  
 community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell  
 alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the  
 performance from a person who is responsible for the premises. 
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential premises 
 of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500,  
 and (b) the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i) the local  
 authority concerned, or (ii) the school or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital. 

• Recorded Music: no licence permission is required for:
o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to sell alcohol  
 for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500. 
o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village hall,  
 community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell  
 alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the  
 performance from a person who is responsible for the premises. 
o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential premises of (i) a  
 local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) 
 the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i) the local authority  
 concerned, or (ii) the school proprietor or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital. 

Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



 

 

 

18.05.2022  

Licensing Team Representation 

Officer : Peter Narancic Senior Licensing and Enforcement Officer 

 

Grant Application  

KTO (READING) LTD 

Bowl Central 

65 Caversham Road 

Reading  

RG1 8AD 
 
 

Licensable Activities and Hours applied for: 

Supply of Alcohol (On licence only) 

Sunday to Thursday from 1000hrs to 0000hrs  

Friday and Saturday from 1000hrs to 0100hrs 

From the start of permitted hours on New Year's Eve to 0100hrs on New Year's Day each 
year 

 

Provision of Recorded Music (Indoors) 

Sunday to Thursday from  1000hrs to 0000hrs 

Friday and Saturday from  1000hrs to 0100hrs 

 

Late Night Refreshment (Indoors) 

Sunday to Thursday from  2300hrs to 0000hrs 

Friday and Saturday from   2300hrs to 0100hrs 

Appendix RS-2

Page 32



From 23.00 hours on New Year's Eve to 0100hrs on New Year's Day each year 

 

Hours Open to the Public 

Sunday to Thursday from 1000hrs to 0030hrs  

Friday and Saturday from 1000hrs to 0130hrs 

 
Application received 26.04.2022  
Consultation ends 24.05.2022  
 

Officer Comments 

 
The Licensing team wish to make representation in respect this grant application for a 
Bowling Alley in Caversham Road, Reading (formally a retail unit) which wishes to 
operate 7 days a week in a residential area, due to the potential undermining of the 
licensing objectives. The Licensing team believe that the operating schedule contained 
within the application does not include enough information or suitable measures to 
promote the licensing objectives to operate a new Entertainments Centre (Ten Pin 
Bowling) supplying alcohol, recorded music and late night refreshment in the town 
centre. It is also noted that no documentation has been supplied to confirm this business 
can operate lawfully in regard to planning legislation. The Licensing team do not believe 
the measures outlined in the operating schedule are robust enough to ensure the 
promotion of the four licensing objectives – particularly the prevention of crime and 
disorder, prevention of public nuisance, public safety and the protection of children 
from harm.  
 
 
There is a general concern surrounding the supply of alcohol specifically in a residential 
areas. Reading Borough Council understands that the Licensing Objectives are 
prospective and preventative, and as such submit that in order to ensure that the 
licensing objectives are upheld. The Licensing officer has noted that the applicant has 
made no specific references to the Council’s Statement of Licensing policy in the 
application, or made references to any current issues of crime and disorder in the area 
where the premises is located. 
 
The new Premises is located in the Town centre/cumulative impact borders, on the 
main Caversham Road (A329), which is a well used busy road to and from Reading town 
centre by pedestrians and vehicles. Possible confrontations between Bowling customers 
and other groups in Caversham Road. Possible noise and anti-social behaviour and other 
crimes from Bowling customers leaving and walking through residential areas in 
Caversham Road/Northfield Road/Swansea Road/York Road/Addison Road/Cardiff 
Road/Richfield Avenue (South)/Gt Knollys Street/Station Road. No information was 

Page 33



provided in regard to planning (late hours/change of use/changes to structure). It is 
assumed outside areas of the premises will not be used for drinking or eating. 
 
 
When looking to grant a premises licence, the licensing authority and other Responsible 
Authorities have to determine what the likely effect of granting any licence would be 
on the promotion of the licensing objectives. This is consistent with section 18 (6) and 
59 (1) of the Licensing Act 2003. The licensing objectives are prospective as outlined 
below and given all of the above reasons and the rationale given for them below, 
respectfully submit that the application be refused if the applicant is unwilling to 
accept more robust conditions, than those offered by the applicant.  
The Licensing team have taken some time to look at this application in some detail, as 
it is located within a challenging area in regards crime and disorder.  Additional 
information was sought from the applicant regarding staffing levels, the capacity and 
planning permissions.  However, at the time of drafting this representation, no response 
was received. 
 
The conditions below are based on Applicant’s Operating Schedule,  Reading Borough 
Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy, Licensing Act Guidance, local crime statistics 
and the Officer’s local area knowledge of the area and will assist the applicant in 
supporting the four licensing objectives whist operating their business near the town 
centre, in a residential area.  
 
As mentioned above, there is a significant issue in the Reading area with crime and 
disorder, including street crime, use of bladed weapons, drug taking, sexual assaults  
and drunkenness. This has led to issues of anti-social behaviour in local communities.  
  
Sections 8.41 to 8.49 of the Secretary of State’s Guidance outline what applicant’s 
should consider when they are filling out their operating schedule – including sufficient 
measures and why those measures are deemed sufficient. Section 18 (6) of the Licensing 
Act 2003 makes clear that representations should be about the likely effect of granting 
a licence on the promotion of the licensing objectives. The case law of East Lindsey DC 
v Abu Hanif also clearly outlines that the licensing objectives require a prospective 
consideration of what is warranted in the public interest having regard to the twin 
interests of prevention and deterrence. In other words, responsible authorities do not 
have to wait for the licensing objectives to be undermined before considering taking 
action to prevent and deter that action from taking place in the first place. Further, 
the licensing authority cannot just simply duplicate what is in the operating schedule 
of an application - particularly if it is unclear or likely to be unenforceable (sections 
10.4 to 10.7 of the guidance)  
I refer to Section 18 (6) of the Licensing Act in regard to the likely effect the granting 
of a licence would have on the promotion of the licensing objectives and sections 8.41 
to 8.49 of the Secretary of State’s Guidance which deals with the information that 
applicants should provide to the licensing authority in order to actively promote the 
licensing objectives.   
 
Secretary of State’s Guidance  

Page 34



8.41 In completing an operating schedule, applicants are expected to have regard to 
the statement of licensing policy for their area. They must also be aware of the 
expectations of the licensing authority and the responsible authorities as to the steps 
that are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives, and to demonstrate 
knowledge of their local area when describing the steps they propose to take to 
promote the licensing objectives. Licensing authorities and responsible authorities are 
expected to publish information about what is meant by the promotion of the licensing 
objectives and to ensure that applicants can readily access advice about these matters. 
However, applicants are also expected to undertake their own enquiries about the area 
in which the premises are situated to inform the content of the 
application.                                                                                                               
                                                                                                         Reading Borough 
Council Licensing Policy statement (2018) states:  
(22nd October 2018 until 21st October 2023)  
  
1.1 This policy sets out how the Council as the Licensing Authority for Reading promotes 
the four licensing objectives stated in the Licensing Act 2003. The four licensing 
objectives, as outlined in Section 4 (2) of the Licensing Act 2003, are of equal 
importance and the Council along with other named Responsible Authorities, 
stakeholders, residents and licence holders shall work together in order to actively 
promote them. Those four licensing objectives are:  
- The prevention of crime and disorder  
- The prevention of public nuisance  
- The protection of children from harm  
- Public Safety  
  
1.2 The Council must have regard to the four licensing objectives when carrying out its 
functions under the Licensing Act 2003. The Licensing Authority will also have regard 
to other Council policies which have been introduced to tackle issues that may 
undermine crime and disorder or any of the other licensing objectives. The Licensing 
Authority will have regard to the contents of this policy as well as the Secretary of 
State’s Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003. It may also depart 
from this policy and the Secretary of State’s Guidance if there are exceptional 
circumstances and it is appropriate to do so to promote the licensing objectives. If the 
Licensing Authority departs from the Secretary of State’s Guidance it will give reasons 
as per paragraph 1.9 of that guidance. 1.3 The legislation also supports other key aims 
and purposes. These are outlined in paragraph 1.5 of the guidance and should be 
principal aims for all parties involved in licensing for the promotion of the licensing 
objectives. The licensing authority will have regard to these key aims in its decision 
making. They are:  
- Protecting the public and local residents from crime, anti-social behaviour and 
noise  
nuisance associated and caused by irresponsible licensed premises;  
- Giving the police and licensing authorities the powers they need to effectively manage 
and police the night time economy and take action against those premises that are 
causing problems;  

Page 35



- Recognising the important role which pubs and other licensed premises play in our 
local communities by minimising the regulatory burden on business, encouraging 
innovation and supporting responsible premises;  
- Providing a regulatory framework for alcohol which reflects the needs of local 
communities and empowers local authorities to make and enforce decisions about the 
most appropriate licensing strategies for their local area;  
- Encouraging greater community involvement in licensing decisions and giving local 
residents the opportunity to have their say regarding licensing decisions that may affect 
them.  
  
Licensing and Planning integration  
2.2 The planning authority of Reading Borough Council is a responsible authority under 
the Licensing Act 2003. It can make representations on applications or call for reviews 
of existing licences based upon any of the four licensing objectives. The prevention of 
crime and disorder and prevention of public nuisance are shared concerns of the 
planning and licensing authorities.  
  
2.3 The planning authority have a number of policies that impact on Reading’s night 
time economy. The Licensing authority recognises that licensing applications should not 
be a rerun of the planning application process. The planning authority remains the 
regime that is directed at development of land and the use of premises upon it. The 
licensing authority remains the regime that is directed at the licensable activities and 
responsible management of said premises upon that land.  
2.4 Whilst there is a clear distinction and separation between the licensing authority 
and planning authority in terms of their remit, there are times when there are 
overlapping considerations. In order to secure proper integration across the Council’s 
range of policies, the Licensing authority will expect applicants to demonstrate that 
their proposed use of a premises is lawful in planning terms, including complying with 
any conditions and timings that may be imposed upon a planning consent prior to any 
application being submitted under the Licensing Act.  
2.5 Where the planning authority has granted planning consent to a specific time, the 
Licensing authority would expect any applicants under the Licensing Act to not exceed 
that time within any application.  
2.6 Where the planning authority has granted a planning consent that contains 
conditions that may undermine the promotion of the licensing objectives (such as a 
restriction in the opening hours based on potential public nuisance issues), the 
licensing authority would expect applicants to demonstrate how they will mitigate 
those issues within any application. Failure to do so could lead to representations 
being made against an application.  
2.7 Whilst acknowledging that planning and licensing are separate regimes and that 
licensing authorities and not bound by the decisions of planning committees (and vice 
versa), the licensing authority shall aim for the proper integration between licensing 
and all other Council policies, strategies and initiatives in order to actively promote the 
licensing objectives.  
2.8 When licensing applications are determined by officers of the Licensing Authority 
or by the Licensing Sub Committee, conditions may be imposed upon a licence in order 

Page 36



to ensure consistency between the licensing objectives and any measures already 
determined by the panning authority that could impact the licensing objectives.  
2.9 The Council’s ‘Reading Central Area Action Plan’ identifies in more detail those 
issues relating to licensed premises, the 24 hour economy and the general 
organisation of retailing within the town centre.  
 
2.10 The key issues surrounding the determination of planning permission are as 
follows:  
- Impact on residential amenity through noise, odour, disturbance, litter, etc  
- Impact on the viability of the town centre  
- Potential financial contribution to a safer borough (CCTV)  
These are all matters that are also proper concerns of the licensing authority and will 
be taken into account when determining applications. If appropriate to the promotion 
of the licensing objectives, conditions may be added to licences so as to ensure 
proper integration of Council policies and strategies  
 
 
Other Legislation that the Licensing Authority will consider  
3.7 The Licensing Authority will also have cognisance to the following legislation when 
it decides to discharge it’s responsibilities under the Licensing Act. This list is not 
exhaustive:  
- Environmental Protection Act 1990 which deals with noise and nuisance  
- Regulatory Reform Order 2005 which deals with fire safety  
- Highways Act 1980 which deals with pavement café licences  
- Reading Borough Council Act 2013 which deals with street trading and touting  
- Health and Safety at Work Act 1974 and Food Hygiene regulations  

• Planning legislation (see paragraphs 2.2-2.9 of this policy)  
  
General Approach  

  
7.1 The Licensing Act 2003 gives the licensing authority the power to make decisions 
about the hours during which premises can conduct licensable activities as part of the 
implementation of this policy. The licensing authority will make appropriate decisions 
on licensing hours for the locality of each premises. All applications will be considered 
on its individual merits.  
 
7.2 When an application receives representations, the authority may consider reducing 
the opening hours and times for licensable activities if it considers it appropriate for 
the promotion of the licensing objectives.  
  
7.3 As part of the operating schedule submitted with any application, the applicant is 
expected to take cognisance of the guidance, this policy and any other available data 
pertaining to their prospective locality and the potential impact their operation may 
have on that area.  
 

Page 37



7.4 Where it is deemed appropriate and proportionate to do so, the authority may seek 
to reduce the hours for licensable activities in order to promote an orderly and gradual 
dispersal from a certain area or certain premises.  
 
7.5 All applicants and licence holders are expected to achieve and to adhere to  any 
relevant planning permissions – including hours of operation. Applicants are expected 
to achieve planning permission before applying for any licence. Where the  planning 
authority have set a terminal hour on a premises planning permission, the licensing 
authority will generally only grant a licence to that hour. This is to ensure consistency 
and integration between licensing and planning as detailed in section 2 of this policy.  
 
Licensed Premises  
 
7.6 When dealing with applications and issuing licences, the authority is likely to impose 
stricter conditions on premises operating in residential areas if it considers it 
appropriate and proportionate to do so. This will apply to all premises types.  
 

7.7 Generally, any licensed premises looking to open past 11pm (2300hrs) in a 
residential area will need to demonstrate clearly in their operating schedule that public 
nuisance will not result from later operation. As part of the operating schedule, 
applicants should read the Secretary of State’s Guidance, this policy and any other 
relevant document and ensure that robust measures are included in any application. 

7.8 Premises that wish to provide regulated entertainment may be subject to 
additional conditions to ensure that residents are not disturbed. This may include the 
use of sound limiters; keeping doors and windows closed and restricting the hours when 
music is played. 
 
7.12 The licensing authority will seek the input of the Council’s Environmental 
Protection and Nuisance team when looking at measures that may be appropriate for 
the prevention of public nuisance. This will include taking cognisance of any 
representations that are submitted as part of the application process or any 
enforcement action they have taken under their own legislation – such as noise 
abatement notices. 
 

7.16 There are concerns about noise, nuisance, crime and disorder and anti social    
behaviour in respect of premises open late and providing hot food and drink. Operators 
and potential applicants of late night refreshment venues wishing to open past 11pm will 
need to demonstrate that there are suitable policies and procedures in place to mitigate 
any undermining of the licensing objectives from their operation. If suitable practices 
and policies are not put in place and it is the belief of the Authority that crime and 
disorder and/or a public nuisance is likely to occur due to the late operation of late night 
refreshment premises, then the Authority will look at reducing the hours and or (subject 
to relevant representations being received) removing late night refreshment from an 

Page 38



application in its entirety. 

 
7.17  The Authority – whilst taking each application on it’s own merits – is unlikely to 
grant excessive hours to any premises if it believes it will undermine the promotion of 
the licensing objectives in the locality where it proposes to operate. Applicant’s should 
ensure that their application takes cognisance of the information available – including 
crime data – and ensure that the operating scheduled is tailored accordingly. Premises 
within the Council’s town centre Cumulative Impact Area will also need to ensure that 
they rebut the presumption of refusal against applications in that area. 

8.1 The protection of children from harm includes the protection of children from moral, 
psychological and physical harm. This includes not only protecting children from the 
harms associated directly with alcohol consumption but also wider harms such as 
exposure to strong language and sexual expletives (for example, in the context of 
exposure to certain films or adult entertainment). The Secretary of State’s Guidance 
to the Licensing Act 2003 also makes clear that the authority must also consider the 
need to protect children from sexual exploitation when undertaking licensing 
functions. 

 
8.2  Applicants must be clear in their operating schedules about the activities and     times 

at which the events would take place to help determine when it is not appropriate 
for children to enter the premises. Consideration should also be given to the proximity 
of premises to schools and youth clubs so that applicants take appropriate steps to 
ensure that advertising relating to their premises, or relating to events at their 
premises, is not displayed at a time when children are likely to be near the premises. 

 
 
 Conditions Consistent with the Operating Schedule 
 
Close Circuit Television (CCTV)  
 
1. The Premises Licence holder shall provide a closed-circuit television system (CCTV) 
at the premises. The CCTV system installed shall be maintained in effective working 
order and shall be in operation during licensing hours. All recordings made by the CCTV 
system shall be retained and stored in a suitable and secure manner for a minimum of 
31 days. There shall be at least one camera positioned at each entry and exit point to 
monitor any external areas to the premises and of such quality to enable identification 
of the recorded person in any light. Data recordings shall be made immediately for 
viewing to an authorised officer from Reading Borough Council or Thames Valley Police 
together with facilities for viewing upon request, subject to the provisions of the Data 
Protection Act and GDPR legislation.  At least one member of staff on the premises at 
any time during operating hours shall be trained to access and download material from 
the CCTV system. Any password protection code to enable access to the recording 

Page 39



system shall always be available  to enable access to recordings for viewing or 
downloading images.  

 
a) The designated premises supervisor or nominated representative are required to 
contact both Thames Valley Police at licensing@thamesvalley.pnn.police.uk and the 
Licensing Team at Reading Borough Council at licensing@reading.gov.uk 
within 24 hours of when they become aware that the CCTV system is not functioning 
correctly, outlining the reason if known and when it is likely to be repaired and in due 
course confirmation once the CCTV system is repaired.  
 
2. Signage advising that CCTV is in use shall be positioned in prominent positions. 
 
 
DOOR SUPERVISORS  
 
3. Subject to the conditions below SIA accredited security staff will be employed on 
Friday and Saturday (and on New Year’s Eve when this does not fall on a Friday and 
Saturday) from 20:00 until at least half an hour after the end of permitted hours for 
the sale of alcohol.  
 
4. On all other occasions the provision of SIA accredited security staff will be risk 
assessed. A copy of the risk assessment shall be kept on the premises and made 
available for inspection by authorised officers from Reading Borough Council and 
Thames Valley police on request.  
 
5. The requirement for SIA accredited security staff to be employed by virtue of 
condition 3. above at times when Government lockdown regulations are in force 
relating to the Covid 19 pandemic (or similar pandemics) shall be suspended. During 
this time the requirement for door supervisor shall be risk assessed  
 
6. The risk assessment shall be reviewed and updated at least once every 6 months.  
 
7. Where SIA accredited security staff are employed on the premises the following 
conditions will apply:  
(a) The SIA accredited security staff shall be employed solely for vetting, regulating, 
controlling and supervising patrons whilst entering and whilst on the premises and to 
ensure the maintenance of good order, public safety and internal security.  
(b) A register shall be kept at the premises to record the details 
of the SIA accredited security staff, the number of persons on the premises and any 
incidents. The register shall be produced to authorised officers of Reading Borough 
Council and Thames Valley Police upon request.  
(c) The register shall contain the following details:  
• Full SIA registration number. 

Page 40



• Date and time that the SIA security staff commenced duty, countersigned by the 
Designated Premises Supervisor or Duty Manager. • Date and time that the SIA security 
staff finished work, countersigned by the 
Designated Premises Supervisor or Duty Manager. 
• Any occurrence or incident of interest involving crime and 
disorder or public safety must be recorded giving names of the SIA accredited security 
staff involved. 
• Training records 
• ID Photo and scan of SIA badge 
• A record will be kept on site of all SIA checks, on the 
validity of all door staff licences. 
• The name, home address and registration number of all SIA accredited security staff 
working at the premises; 
• The SIA  accredited security staff register must be kept at the premises and be 
available for inspection by Thames Valley Police or an authorised officer from Reading 
Borough Council and shall be retained for a period of 1 Year.  
(d) SIA accredited security staff shall wear clothing that makes 
them clearly identifiable to patrons and staff of the premises, and identifiable on CCTV 
in all lights  
(e) Where SIA accredited security staff are employed at the 
premises and are deployed with digitally recording Body Worn Video (BWV) the BWV 
will be used to record any incidents which occur inside or outside of the premises 
involving customers, prospective customers or any staff member that impact on any of 
the four licensing objectives.  
(f) Data recordings shall be made immediately available to an authorised officer from  
Reading Borough Council or Thames Valley Police together with facilities for viewing 
upon request, subject to the provisions of the Data Protection Act.  
(g) A BWV weekly log must be kept at the premises – This will record all the incidents 
reported by the security team and what actions the premises management have taken 
to promote the four licensing objectives. 
 
 
SEARCH POLICY 
 
8. An active search policy shall be put in place to prevent illegal drugs and weapons 
being brought on to the premises. The policy shall include, but not be limited to, 
methods of search, detection, confiscation and disposal and shall be actively operated. 
The policy shall be in written format and made available upon request to an authorised 
officer from Reading Borough Council or Thames Valley Police. Notices shall also be put 
in place informing customers that the management reserve the right to conduct an 
outer body search and/or bag as a condition of entering the premises. 
  
9. Regular checks of high risk areas for drug use (including the toilets) shall be carried 
out by door staff and premises staff when door staff are not available. A written record 
of all checks shall be maintained and made available upon request by an authorised 
officer from Reading Borough Council or Thames Valley Police.  

Page 41



 
 
DISPERSAL POLICY  
 
10. A written dispersal policy for controlling the closing of the premises and the 
departure of customers at the conclusion of the licensed activities shall be put in place 
and shall be actively operated. This policy shall be made available to an authorised 
officer from Reading Borough council or  Thames Valley Police. 
 
11. Clearly legible and suitable notices shall be displayed at all exits requesting 
customers to respect the needs of local residents and to leave the premises and area 
quietly;  
 
12.  At the conclusion of licensable activities staff will be available to assist with 
dispersing customers from the premises and the immediate vicinity.  
 
13. Any person who refuses to leave the area and is identified as causing or potentially 
about to cause antisocial behaviour, will be a subject to a ban from the premises. A 
record of banned individuals shall be maintained in the premises and all staff made 
aware of the persons who are currently banned so that entry may be refused. This 
record shall be available to an authorised officer from Reading Borough Council or 
Thames Valley Police upon request and shall be retained for one year.  
 
INCIDENT REGISTER  
 
14. All incidents which impact on any of the four licensing objectives shall be recorded 
in a register kept at the premises for this purposed. The names of the person recording 
the incident and those members of staff who deal with any incident shall also be 
recorded. Where known, any offenders name shall also be recorded. This record shall 
be available for inspection by an authorised officer from Reading Borough Council or 
Thames Valley Police upon request and shall be retained for one year.  The record shall 
be signed off by the Designated Premises Supervisor or nominated representative at the 
end of each trading session;  
 
15. A weekly review of the incident register shall also be carried out by the Designated 
Premises Supervisor.  
 
STAFF TRAINING  
 
16. Staff employed to sell alcohol shall undergo training upon induction. This shall 
include, but not be limited to: 
• The premises age verification policy 
• The law relating to underage sales 
• Dealing with refusal of sales 
• Proxy purchasing 
• Recognising valid identity documents 

Page 42



• Identifying attempts by intoxicated persons to purchase 
alcohol 
•  Identifying signs of intoxication 
• Conflict management 
• How to identify and safeguard vulnerable persons who attend 
and leave the premises 
• Identifying signs of drug usage and prevention 
• Child Sexual Exploitation 
• The four licensing objectives  
 -  Drinks spiking   
 
 
17. Such training sessions are to be documented and refreshed every 12 months.  All 
training sessions are to be documented in English. Records of training shall be kept for 
a minimum of one year and be made available to an authorised officer from Reading 
Borough Council or Thames Valley Police upon request.  
 
AGE VERIFICATION  
 
18. The Premises Licence holder shall display in a prominent position a copy of their 
policy on checking proof of age.  
 
19. The Premises shall at all times operate a Challenge 25 to prevent any customers 
who attempt to purchase alcohol and who appear to the staff member to be under the 
age of 25 years from making such a purchase without having first provided 
identification. Acceptable forms of ID for production at the delivery address are a 
passport, a photo card driving licence, a card bearing the ‘PASS’ hologram or Military 
ID (or any other nationally accredited scheme) or any other form or method of 
identification that complies with any mandatory condition that may apply to this 
licence are to be accepted as identification. 
 
20. Posters advertising the Challenge 25 and proof of age policies shall be displayed in 
prominent places in the premises so that they can be seen internally and externally;  
 
21. No person under the age of 18 years will be permitted on the premises after 21:00 
hours without being accompanied by a responsible adult.  
 
22. Prominent, clear notices shall be displayed at every public entrance stating any 
restrictions relating to the admission of children to the premises or other admission 
restrictions.  
 
REFUSAL BOOK  
 
23.  All staff involved in the sale of alcohol shall be trained to record refusals of sales 
of alcohol in a refusals log (whether written or electronic). The log shall contain:  
• Details of the time and date the refusal was made; 

Page 43



• The identity of the staff member refusing the sale; 
• Any detail or description of the person refused and the reason why. 
• This book /register will be available for inspection by an authorised officer from  
Reading Borough Council or Thames Valley police upon request.  
 
 
PUBWATCH  
 
24. The premises licence holder or nominated representative shall actively participate 
in the town centre Pubwatch scheme should one be operating in the area.  
 
 
TOWN SAFE RADIO  
 
25. The premises licence holder or nominated representative shall participate in the 
Reading Town Safe Radio Scheme when the premises are opened for licensable activities 
Monday to Sunday inclusive.  
 
REMOVAL OF GLASSWARE AND OPEN CONTAINERS  
 
26. No alcohol shall be removed from the premises or consumed outside.  
 
27. Drinks shall be served in containers made from toughened glass (tempered 
glassware).  
 
PLANNING PERMISSION 
 
28. The Premise Licence holder shall not provide any licensable activity at the premises 
in a manner or at times that constitutes a breach of any planning restriction.  
 
(This has been included as we have not been provided documentation regarding lawful 
planning permission for these premises).  
 
OTHER INITIATIVES 
 
29. The Premises Licence Holder shall actively participate in initiatives set up by 
Thames Valley Police and Reading Borough Council to tackle for example but not limited 
to Anti-Social Behaviour/illegal drugs/public safety issues or similar initiatives.  
 
 
 
 
Background Information 
 
RBC Licensing Policy  
  

Page 44



https://www.reading.gov.uk/business/licences/alcohol-and-entertainment-
licences/premises-licence/licensing-policy/ 
 
 
Local Crime Stats 
 
 
https://www.streetcheck.co.uk/crime/rg17ay 
 
 
https://www.streetcheck.co.uk/crime/rg18ew 
 
 
https://www.streetcheck.co.uk/crime/rg18ey 
 
 
https://www.streetcheck.co.uk/crime/rg17hu 
 
 
https://www.streetcheck.co.uk/crime/rg11lg 
 
 
Local Press 
 
https://www.readingchronicle.co.uk/news/19773806.reading-town-centre-among-
crime-ridden-england-wales/ 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

Page 45

https://www.streetcheck.co.uk/crime/rg17ay
https://www.streetcheck.co.uk/crime/rg18ew
https://www.streetcheck.co.uk/crime/rg18ey
https://www.streetcheck.co.uk/crime/rg17hu


GEN46-LAN(5/95) 

THAMES VALLEY POLICE 

 Division/Station : Reading Police Station Licensing Dept 

 From : C2107 Declan Smyth                                               To : Reading Borough Council 
     

 Ref :  KTO (Reading) LTD, 65 Caversham Road, Reading, Berkshire RG1 8AD   Date :19th May 2022
  

Objection 
 
To whom it may concern 
 
I C2107 Declan Smyth on behalf of the Chief Officer of Thames Valley Police wish to 
formally object to the proposed application for a premises licence submitted by KTO 
(Reading) LTD, 65 Caversham Road, Reading, Berkshire RG1 8AD as it is believed that this 
application in its current format will undermine the four licensing objectives with specific 
regard to that of the prevention of public nuisance and the prevention of crime & disorder. 
 
The proposal before the Sub-Committee is for: 
 

• Provision Of Recorded Music (Indoors) 
Sunday to Thursday From 10:00hrs until 24:00hrs 
Friday & Saturday From 10:00hrs until 01:00hrs 
 

• Late Night Refreshment 
Sunday to Thursday From 23:00hrs until 24:00hrs 
Friday & Saturday From 23:00hrs until 01:00hrs 
 

• Supply Of Alcohol (On the premises) 
Sunday to Thursday From 10:00hrs until 24:00hrs 
Friday & Saturday From 10:00hrs until 01:00hrs 
 

• Hours Premises Are Open To The Public 
Sunday to Thursday From 10:00hrs until 00:30hrs 
Friday & Saturday From 10:00hrs until 01:30hrs 

 
 
The operating schedule within the application form contains some proposed conditions but 
does not contain sufficient measures wherein we can be satisfied that the four licensing 
objectives will be actively promoted. The applicant intends to operate the premises as a ten-
pin bowling centre providing 7 lanes and ancillary facilities including provision of food and a 
small bar and lounge area. 
 
Paragraph 8.41 to 8.49 of the Secretary of States Guidance issued under Sec 182 Licensing 
Act 2003 states:- 
8.41 In completing an operating schedule, applicants are expected to have regard to the 
statement of licensing policy for their area. They must also be aware of the expectations of 
the licensing authority and the responsible authorities as to the steps that are appropriate for 
the promotion of the licensing objectives, and to demonstrate knowledge of their local area 
when describing the steps they propose to take to promote the licensing objectives. Licensing 
authorities and responsible authorities are expected to publish information about what is 
meant by the promotion of the licensing objectives and to ensure that applicants can readily 
access advice about these matters. However, applicants are also expected to undertake their 

Subject  : 

Appendix RS-3

Page 46



GEN46-LAN(5/95) 

own enquiries about the area in which the premises are situated to inform the content of the 
application. 
8.42 Applicants are, in particular, expected to obtain sufficient information to enable them to 
demonstrate, when setting out the steps they propose to take to promote the licensing 
objectives, that they understand: 
• the layout of the local area and physical environment including crime and disorder hotspots, 
proximity to residential premises and proximity to areas where children may congregate; 
• any risk posed to the local area by the applicants’ proposed licensable activities; and 
• any local initiatives (for example, local crime reduction initiatives or voluntary schemes 
including local taxi-marshalling schemes, street pastors and other schemes) which may help 
to mitigate potential risks. 
8.43 Applicants are expected to include positive proposals in their application on how they 
will manage any potential risks. Where specific policies apply in the area (for example, a 
cumulative impact policy), applicants are also expected to demonstrate an understanding of 
how the policy impacts on their application; any measures they will take to mitigate the 
impact; and why they consider the application should be an exception to the policy. 
8.44 It is expected that enquiries about the locality will assist applicants when determining 
the steps that are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. For example, 
premises with close proximity to residential premises should consider what effect this will 
have on their smoking, noise management and dispersal policies to ensure the promotion of 
the public nuisance objective. Applicants must consider all factors which may be relevant to 
the promotion of the licensing objectives, and where there are no known concerns, 
acknowledge this in their application. 
8.45 The majority of information which applicants will require should be available in the 
licensing policy statement in the area. Other publicly available sources which may be of use 
to applicants include: 
• the Crime Mapping website; 
• Neighbourhood Statistics websites; 
• websites or publications by local responsible authorities; 
• websites or publications by local voluntary schemes and initiatives; and 
• on-line mapping tools. 
8.46 While applicants are not required to seek the views of responsible authorities before 
formally submitting their application, they may find them to be a useful source of expert 
advice on local issues that should be taken into consideration when making an application. 
Licensing authorities may wish to encourage co-operation between applicants, responsible 
authorities and, where relevant, local residents and businesses before applications are 
submitted in order to minimise the scope for disputes to arise. 
8.47 Applicants are expected to provide licensing authorities with sufficient information in 
this section to determine the extent to which their proposed steps are appropriate to promote 
the licensing objectives in the local area. Applications must not be based on providing a set of 
standard conditions to promote the licensing objectives and applicants are expected to make it 
clear why the steps they are proposing are appropriate for the premises. 
8.48 All parties are expected to work together in partnership to ensure that the licensing 
objectives are promoted collectively. Where there are no disputes, the steps that applicants 
propose to take to promote the licensing objectives, as set out in the operating schedule, will 
very often translate directly into conditions that will be attached to premises licences with the 
minimum of fuss. 
8.49 For some premises, it is possible that no measures will be appropriate to promote 
one or more of the licensing objectives, for example, because they are adequately 
covered by other existing legislation. It is however important that all operating 
schedules should be precise and clear about the measures that are proposed to promote 
each of the licensing objectives. 
 
Paragraph 6.24 to 6.26 of the Reading Borough Council Licensing Policy (effective from: 
22nd October 2018 until 21st October 2023) states:- 
 

Page 47



GEN46-LAN(5/95) 

Alcohol led bars and clubs with regulated entertainment – General Approach to 
conditions 
 
6.27 The licensing authority is of the opinion that premises that are alcohol led; provide 
limited seating for customers; provide little food and provide entertainment facilities have the 
strongest potential to undermine the promotion of the licensing objectives. The licensing 
authority believes that venues that encourage up right vertical drinking and the sale of alcohol 
– often at cheap prices – leads to a negative impact on the town and only serves to promote 
drunkenness and crime and disorder. Any applicant who wishes to operate such a venue will 
have to demonstrate that it’s proposed use does not undermine the promotion of the licensing 
objectives and the authority would expect any operating schedule to contain stringent policies 
and procedures to achieve this. Measures such as CCTV, employment of door supervisors 
and the use of a club scan device will be expected as a minimum requirement. Door staff will 
also be expected to wear high visibility jackets and armbands so that they can be easily 
identified as well utilising – where appropriate – body worn video to help promote the 
prevention of crime and disorder licensing objective. The use of breathalysers is also to be 
encouraged in venues that are alcohol led and should – where appropriate – be advertised as a 
condition of entry to a licensed premises – particularly given the current prevalence for pre-
loading. 
 
Licensed Premises in Residential Areas 
                                                                              
7.6 When dealing with applications and issuing licences, the authority is likely to impose 
stricter conditions on premises operating in residential areas if it considers it 
appropriate and proportionate to do so. This will apply to all premises types. 
 
7.7 Generally, any licensed premises looking to open past 11pm (2300hrs) in a 
residential area will need to demonstrate clearly in their operating schedule that public 
nuisance will not result from later operation. As part of the operating schedule, 
applicants should read the Secretary of State’s Guidance, this policy and any other 
relevant document and ensure that robust measures are included in any application. 
 
7.8 Premises that wish to provide regulated entertainment may be subject to additional 
conditions to ensure that residents are not disturbed. This may include the use of sound 
limiters; keeping doors and windows closed and restricting the hours when music is 
played. 
 
7.9 Premises with outdoor areas such as beer gardens and smoking areas may also be subject 
to further restrictions in regard to their operation and use. 
 
7.10 Where any outside area is used for drinking and/or smoking – including the public 
highway outside of a licensed premises – and complaints of public nuisance or noise are 
received the authority will consider controls to limit the disturbance. 
 
7.11 Premises that are planning to put on events that involve regulated entertainment may be 
required to provide the authority with a detailed event management plan of that event which 
may include a detailed noise risk assessment. 
 
17.12 The licensing authority will seek the input of the Council’s Environmental Protection 
and Nuisance team when looking at measures that may be appropriate for the prevention of 
public nuisance. This will include taking cognisance of any representations that are submitted 
as part of the application process or any enforcement action they have taken under their own 
legislation – such as noise abatement notices. 
 
Thames Valley Police believe that this application including the proposed operating schedule 
and hours of operation regarding the sale of alcohol will undermine the four licensing 

Page 48



GEN46-LAN(5/95) 

objectives. The applicant has not sufficiently taken into account concerns relating to public 
nuisance and crime and disorder within the local area and in our opinion not therefore 
provided sufficient steps to promote the four licensing objectives.  
 
If the applicant, KTO (READING) LTD agrees to the conditions (listed below) being placed 
onto the premises licence the Thames Valley Police would be willing to withdraw their 
representation. 
 
Thames Valley Police submit the following licence conditions for the consideration of the 
licensing sub-committee which we feel are appropriate in order to promote the four licensing 
objectives:- 
 
Close Circuit Television (CCTV)  
 
1. The Premises Licence holder shall provide a closed-circuit television system (CCTV) at 
the premises. The CCTV system installed shall be maintained in effective working order and 
shall be in operation during licensing hours. All recordings made by the CCTV system shall 
be retained and stored in a suitable and secure manner for a minimum of 31 days. There shall 
be at least one camera positioned at each entry and exit point to monitor any external areas to 
the premises and of such quality to enable identification of the recorded person in any light. 
Data recordings shall be made immediately for viewing to an authorised officer from Reading 
Borough Council or Thames Valley Police together with facilities for viewing upon request, 
subject to the provisions of the Data Protection Act and GDPR legislation.  At least one 
member of staff on the premises at any time during operating hours shall be trained to access 
and download material from the CCTV system. Any password protection code to enable 
access to the recording system shall always be available to enable access to recordings for 
viewing or downloading images.  
 
a) The designated premises supervisor or nominated representative are required to contact 
both Thames Valley Police at licensing@thamesvalley.police.uk and the Licensing Team at 
Reading Borough Council at licensing@reading.gov.uk 
within 24 hours of when they become aware that the CCTV system is not functioning 
correctly, outlining the reason if known and when it is likely to be repaired and in due course 
confirmation once the CCTV system is repaired.  
 
2. Signage advising that CCTV is in use shall be positioned in prominent positions. 
 
DOOR SUPERVISORS  
 
3. Subject to the conditions below SIA accredited security staff will be employed on Friday 
and Saturday (and on New Year’s Eve when this does not fall on a Friday and Saturday) from 
20:00 until at least half an hour after the end of permitted hours for the sale of alcohol.  
 
4. On all other occasions the provision of SIA accredited security staff will be risk assessed. 
A copy of the risk assessment shall be kept on the premises and made available for inspection 
by authorised officers from Reading Borough Council and Thames Valley police on request.  
 
5. The requirement for SIA accredited security staff to be employed by virtue of condition 3. 
above at times when Government lockdown regulations are in force relating to the Covid 19 
pandemic (or similar pandemics) shall be suspended. During this time the requirement for 
door supervisor shall be risk assessed  
 
6. The risk assessment shall be reviewed and updated at least once every 6 months.  
 
7. Where SIA accredited security staff are employed on the premises the following conditions 
will apply:  

Page 49



GEN46-LAN(5/95) 

(a) The SIA accredited security staff shall be employed solely for vetting, regulating, 
controlling and supervising patrons whilst entering and whilst on the premises and to ensure 
the maintenance of good order, public safety and internal security.  
(b) A register shall be kept at the premises to record the details of the SIA accredited security 
staff, the number of persons on the premises and any incidents. The register shall be produced 
to authorised officers of Reading Borough Council and Thames Valley Police upon request.  
(c) The register shall contain the following details:  
• Full SIA registration number. 
• Date and time that the SIA security staff commenced duty, countersigned by the Designated 
Premises Supervisor or Duty Manager.  
• Date and time that the SIA security staff finished work, countersigned by the Designated 
Premises Supervisor or Duty Manager. 
• Any occurrence or incident of interest involving crime and disorder or public safety must be 
recorded giving names of the SIA accredited security staff involved. 
• Training records 
• ID Photo and scan of SIA badge 
• A record will be kept on site of all SIA checks, on the validity of all door staff licences. 
• The name, home address and registration number of all SIA accredited security staff 
working at the premises; 
• The SIA  accredited security staff register must be kept at the premises and be available for 
inspection by Thames Valley Police or an authorised officer from Reading Borough Council 
and shall be retained for a period of 1 Year.  
(d) SIA accredited security staff shall wear clothing that makes them clearly identifiable to 
patrons and staff of the premises, and identifiable on CCTV in all lights  
(e) Where SIA accredited security staff are employed at the premises and are deployed with 
digitally recording Body Worn Video (BWV) the BWV will be used to record any incidents 
which occur inside or outside of the premises involving customers, prospective customers or 
any staff member that impact on any of the four licensing objectives.  
(f) Data recordings shall be made immediately available to an authorised officer from 
Reading Borough Council or Thames Valley Police together with facilities for viewing upon 
request, subject to the provisions of the Data Protection Act.  
(g) A BWV weekly log must be kept at the premises – This will record all the incidents 
reported by the security team and what actions the premises management have taken to 
promote the four licensing objectives. 
 
SEARCH POLICY 
 
8. An active search policy shall be put in place to prevent illegal drugs and weapons being 
brought on to the premises. The policy shall include, but not be limited to, methods of search, 
detection, confiscation and disposal and shall be actively operated. The policy shall be in 
written format and made available upon request to an authorised officer from Reading 
Borough Council or Thames Valley Police. Notices shall also be put in place informing 
customers that the management reserve the right to conduct an outer body search and/or bag 
as a condition of entering the premises. 
  
9. Regular checks of high risk areas for drug use (including the toilets) shall be carried out by 
door staff and premises staff when door staff are not available. A written record of all checks 
shall be maintained and made available upon request by an authorised officer from Reading 
Borough Council or Thames Valley Police.  
 
DISPERSAL POLICY  
 
10. A written dispersal policy for controlling the closing of the premises and the departure of 
customers at the conclusion of the licensed activities shall be put in place and shall be 
actively operated. This policy shall be made available to an authorised officer from Reading 
Borough council or Thames Valley Police. 

Page 50



GEN46-LAN(5/95) 

 
11. Clearly legible and suitable notices shall be displayed at all exits requesting customers to 
respect the needs of local residents and to leave the premises and area quietly;  
 
12.  At the conclusion of licensable activities staff will be available to assist with dispersing 
customers from the premises and the immediate vicinity.  
 
13. Any person who refuses to leave the area and is identified as causing or potentially about 
to cause antisocial behaviour, will be a subject to a ban from the premises. A record of 
banned individuals shall be maintained in the premises and all staff made aware of the 
persons who are currently banned so that entry may be refused. This record shall be available 
to an authorised officer from Reading Borough Council or Thames Valley Police upon 
request and shall be retained for one year.  
 
INCIDENT REGISTER  
 
14. All incidents which impact on any of the four licensing objectives shall be recorded in a 
register kept at the premises for this purposed. The names of the person recording the incident 
and those members of staff who deal with any incident shall also be recorded. Where known, 
any offenders name shall also be recorded. This record shall be available for inspection by an 
authorised officer from Reading Borough Council or Thames Valley Police upon request and 
shall be retained for one year.  The record shall be signed off by the Designated Premises 
Supervisor or nominated representative at the end of each trading session;  
 
15. A weekly review of the incident register shall also be carried out by the Designated 
Premises Supervisor.  
 
STAFF TRAINING  
 
16. Staff employed to sell alcohol shall undergo training upon induction. This shall include, 
but not be limited to: 

• The premises age verification policy 
• The law relating to underage sales 
• Dealing with refusal of sales 
• Proxy purchasing 
• Recognising valid identity documents 
• Identifying attempts by intoxicated persons to purchase alcohol 
• Identifying signs of intoxication 
• Conflict management 
• How to identify and safeguard vulnerable persons who attend and leave the premises 
• Identifying signs of drug usage and prevention 
• Child Sexual Exploitation 
• The four licensing objectives  
• Drinks spiking   

 
17. Such training sessions are to be documented and refreshed every 12 months.  All training 
sessions are to be documented in English. Records of training shall be kept for a minimum of 
one year and be made available to an authorised officer from Reading Borough Council or 
Thames Valley Police upon request.  
 
AGE VERIFICATION 
18. The Premises Licence holder shall display in a prominent position a copy of their policy 
on checking proof of age.  
 
19. The Premises shall at all times operate a Challenge 25 to prevent any customers who 
attempt to purchase alcohol and who appear to the staff member to be under the age of 25 

Page 51



GEN46-LAN(5/95) 

years from making such a purchase without having first provided identification. Acceptable 
forms of ID for production at the delivery address are a passport, a photo card driving licence, 
a card bearing the ‘PASS’ hologram or Military ID (or any other nationally accredited 
scheme) or any other form or method of identification that complies with any mandatory 
condition that may apply to this licence are to be accepted as identification. 
 
20. Posters advertising the Challenge 25 and proof of age policies shall be displayed in 
prominent places in the premises so that they can be seen internally and externally;  
 
21. No person under the age of 18 years will be permitted on the premises after 21:00 hours 
without being accompanied by a responsible adult.  
 
22. Prominent, clear notices shall be displayed at every public entrance stating any 
restrictions relating to the admission of children to the premises or other admission 
restrictions.  
 
REFUSAL BOOK  
 
23.  All staff involved in the sale of alcohol shall be trained to record refusals of sales of 
alcohol in a refusals log (whether written or electronic). The log shall contain:  
• Details of the time and date the refusal was made; 
• The identity of the staff member refusing the sale; 
• Any detail or description of the person refused and the reason why. 
• This book /register will be available for inspection by an authorised officer from Reading 
Borough Council or Thames Valley police upon request.  
 
PUBWATCH  
 
24. The premises licence holder or nominated representative shall actively participate in the 
town centre Pubwatch scheme should one be operating in the area.  
 
TOWN SAFE RADIO  
 
25. The premises licence holder or nominated representative shall participate in the Reading 
Town Safe Radio Scheme when the premises are opened for licensable activities Monday to 
Sunday inclusive.  
 
REMOVAL OF GLASSWARE AND OPEN CONTAINERS  
 
26. No alcohol shall be removed from the premises or consumed outside.  
 
27. Drinks shall be served in containers made from toughened glass (tempered glassware).  
 
PLANNING PERMISSION 
 
28. The Premise Licence holder shall not provide any licensable activity at the premises in a 
manner or at times that constitutes a breach of any planning restriction.  
 
OTHER INITIATIVES 
 
29. The Premises Licence Holder shall actively participate in initiatives set up by Thames 
Valley Police and Reading Borough Council to tackle for example but not limited to Anti-
Social Behaviour/illegal drugs/public safety issues or similar initiatives.  
 

Page 52



E-mail Received – 24/05/2022 – 1355hrs 
 
Dear Sir/Madam, 
 
The Bell Tower Community Association would like to express its opposition to the proposed licensing 
hours for 65 Caversham Road. 
 
After hearing about the proposal we put up a short article on our noticeboard and online at https://bell-
tower.org.uk/bowling-alley-proposal-for-caversham-road-shop/ 
and invited comments from local residents. The feedback we have had so far is that the general use for 
the site as a bowling alley with other games represents a welcome new leisure development, 
particularly as such venues are lacking in Reading, but with concerns from nearby residents about the 
proposal to apply for a late alcohol and entertainment licence. 
 
There are no existing late night entertainment venues adjacent to the residential area, and the residents 
we have heard from are concerned that they would be adversely affected by late night traffic and noise 
from customers leaving the venue. In the case of an entertainment venue with a bar we could foresee a 
significant number of customers leaving around the same time after midnight (or 1am at weekends) and 
creating a disturbance, as the main route inwards for traffic from the east and Caversham will be 
through the residential area (implying potentially a lot of late night taxi traffic), and pedestrians exiting 
towards parts of West Reading would walk through the area too. 
 
Similar objections were made to the nearby Phantom Brewing Company's application in 2020 to extend 
its licence from 10pm to midnight - in this case we have always been satisfied that the venue is well-
managed but there is still significant noise around 10.30pm when customers are walking away from the 
premises, which would have been after midnight with an extended licence. We understand that this 
licence application was refused by the council. 
 
In short, we believe that the general use of the venue will represent a welcome new leisure facility but 
we are concerned about the proposed licensing hours. We would suggest that an alcohol and 
entertainment licence restricted to no later than 11pm would be more appropriate. 
 
Kind regards, 
 
David Neale 
 
Secretary, Bell Tower Community Association 
 

 
www.bell-tower.org.uk 
 
 

Appendix RS-4

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



Dear Licensing team 

 

Response to Applicant’s amendments to Licensing team conditions: 
 

I have looked at the comments from the applicant regarding conditions 3-7 and 

condition 8  at some length. I  have concluded for a brand new premises selling alcohol 

and open until 0030hours, and located near the town centre  to operate a safe 

environment for both staff and customers alike, the conditions regarding the 

requirement to provide SIA door staff to safeguard staff and customers working or 

visiting the premises together with operating a search policy will support all four 

licensing objectives.  

 
Colour key 

 

Green = Agreement reached with applicant 

 

Red = Agreement not reached with applicant 

 

Yellow  = amended wording 

 

Blue = condition removed 

 

Grey = Applicant’s Changes to Hours 

 

 

 

 

24.06.2022  

Licensing Team Representation 

Officer : Peter Narancic Senior Licensing and Enforcement Officer 

 

Page 55



Grant Application  

KTO (READING) LTD 

Bowl Central 

65 Caversham Road 

Reading  

RG1 8AD 
 
 

Licensable Activities and Hours applied for: 

Supply of Alcohol (On licence only) 

Sunday to Thursday from 1000hrs to 0000hrs  

Friday and Saturday from 1000hrs to 0000hrs 

From the start of permitted hours on New Year's Eve to 0100hrs on New Year's Day each 

year 

 

Provision of Recorded Music (Indoors) 

Sunday to Thursday from  1000hrs to 0000hrs 

Friday and Saturday from  1000hrs to 0000hrs 

 

Late Night Refreshment (Indoors) 

Sunday to Thursday from  2300hrs to 0000hrs 

Friday and Saturday from   2300hrs to 0000hrs 

From 23.00 hours on New Year's Eve to 0100hrs on New Year's Day each year 

 

Hours Open to the Public 

Sunday to Thursday from 1000hrs to 0030hrs  

Friday and Saturday from 1000hrs to 0030hrs 

 

 
Application received 26.04.2022  

Page 56



Consultation ends 24.05.2022  
 
 Conditions Consistent with the Operating Schedule 
 
Close Circuit Television (CCTV)  
 
1. The Premises Licence holder shall provide a closed-circuit television system (CCTV) 

at the premises. The CCTV system installed shall be maintained in effective working 

order and shall be in operation during licensing hours. All recordings made by the CCTV 

system shall be retained and stored in a suitable and secure manner for a minimum of 

31 days. There shall be at least one camera positioned at each entry and exit point to 

monitor any external areas to the premises and of such quality to enable identification 

of the recorded person in any light. Data recordings shall be made immediately for 

viewing to an authorised officer from Reading Borough Council or Thames Valley Police 

together with facilities for viewing upon request, subject to the provisions of the Data 

Protection Act and GDPR legislation.  At least one member of staff on the premises at 

any time during operating hours shall be trained to access and download material from 

the CCTV system. Any password protection code to enable access to the recording 

system shall always be available  to enable access to recordings for viewing or 

downloading images.  

 
a) The designated premises supervisor or nominated representative are required to 
contact both Thames Valley Police at licensing@thamesvalley.pnn.police.uk and the 
Licensing Team at Reading Borough Council at licensing@reading.gov.uk 
within 24 hours of when they become aware that the CCTV system is not functioning 
correctly, outlining the reason if known and when it is likely to be repaired and in due 
course confirmation once the CCTV system is repaired.  
 
2. Signage advising that CCTV is in use shall be positioned in prominent positions. 
 
 
DOOR SUPERVISORS  
 
3. Subject to the conditions below SIA accredited security staff will be employed on 
Friday and Saturday (and on New Year’s Eve when this does not fall on a Friday and 
Saturday) from 20:00 until at least half an hour after the end of permitted hours for 
the sale of alcohol.  
 
4. On all other occasions the provision of SIA accredited security staff will be risk 
assessed. A copy of the risk assessment shall be kept on the premises and made 
available for inspection by authorised officers from Reading Borough Council and 
Thames Valley police on request.  
 

Page 57



5. The requirement for SIA accredited security staff to be employed by virtue of 
condition 3. above at times when Government lockdown regulations are in force 
relating to the Covid 19 pandemic (or similar pandemics) shall be suspended. During 
this time the requirement for door supervisor shall be risk assessed  
 
6. The risk assessment shall be reviewed and updated at least once every 6 months.  
 
7. Where SIA accredited security staff are employed on the premises the following 
conditions will apply:  
(a) The SIA accredited security staff shall be employed solely for vetting, regulating, 
controlling and supervising patrons whilst entering and whilst on the premises and to 
ensure the maintenance of good order, public safety and internal security.  
(b) A register shall be kept at the premises to record the details 
of the SIA accredited security staff, the number of persons on the premises and any 
incidents. The register shall be produced to authorised officers of Reading Borough 
Council and Thames Valley Police upon request.  
(c) The register shall contain the following details:  
• Full SIA registration number. 
• Date and time that the SIA security staff commenced duty, countersigned by the 
Designated Premises Supervisor or Duty Manager. • Date and time that the SIA security 
staff finished work, countersigned by the 
Designated Premises Supervisor or Duty Manager. 
• Any occurrence or incident of interest involving crime and 
disorder or public safety must be recorded giving names of the SIA accredited security 
staff involved. 
• Training records 
• ID Photo and scan of SIA badge 
• A record will be kept on site of all SIA checks, on the 
validity of all door staff licences. 
• The name, home address and registration number of all SIA accredited security staff 
working at the premises; 
• The SIA  accredited security staff register must be kept at the premises and be 
available for inspection by Thames Valley Police or an authorised officer from Reading 
Borough Council and shall be retained for a period of 1 Year.  
(d) SIA accredited security staff shall wear clothing that makes 
them clearly identifiable to patrons and staff of the premises, and identifiable on CCTV 
in all lights  
(e) Where SIA accredited security staff are employed at the 
premises and are deployed with digitally recording Body Worn Video (BWV) the BWV 
will be used to record any incidents which occur inside or outside of the premises 
involving customers, prospective customers or any staff member that impact on any of 
the four licensing objectives.  
(f) Data recordings shall be made immediately available to an authorised officer from  
Reading Borough Council or Thames Valley Police together with facilities for viewing 
upon request, subject to the provisions of the Data Protection Act.  

Page 58



(g) A BWV weekly log must be kept at the premises – This will record all the incidents 
reported by the security team and what actions the premises management have taken 
to promote the four licensing objectives. 
 
 
SEARCH POLICY 
 
 
 
8. An active search policy shall be put in place to prevent illegal drugs and weapons 
being brought on to the premises. The policy shall include, but not be limited to, 
methods of search, detection, confiscation and disposal and shall be actively operated. 
The policy shall be in written format and made available upon request to an authorised 
officer from Reading Borough Council or Thames Valley Police. Notices shall also be put 
in place informing customers that the management reserve the right to conduct an 
outer body search and/or bag as a condition of entering the premises. 
  
9. Regular checks of high risk areas for drug use (including the toilets) shall be carried 
out by door staff and premises staff when door staff are not available. A written record 
of all checks shall be maintained and made available upon request by an authorised 
officer from Reading Borough Council or Thames Valley Police.  
 
 
DISPERSAL POLICY  
 
10. A written dispersal policy for controlling the closing of the premises and the 
departure of customers at the conclusion of the licensed activities shall be put in place 
and shall be actively operated. This policy shall be made available to an authorised 
officer from Reading Borough council or  Thames Valley Police. 
 
11. Clearly legible and suitable notices shall be displayed at all exits requesting 
customers to respect the needs of local residents and to leave the premises and area 
quietly;  
 
12.  At the conclusion of licensable activities staff will be available to assist with 
dispersing customers from the premises and the immediate vicinity.  
 
13. Any person who refuses to leave the area and is identified as causing or potentially 
about to cause antisocial behaviour, will be a subject to a ban from the premises. A 
record of banned individuals shall be maintained in the premises and all staff made 
aware of the persons who are currently banned so that entry may be refused. This 
record shall be available to an authorised officer from Reading Borough Council or 
Thames Valley Police upon request and shall be retained for one year.  
 
INCIDENT REGISTER  
 

Page 59



14. All incidents which impact on any of the four licensing objectives shall be recorded 
in a register kept at the premises for this purposed. The names of the person recording 
the incident and those members of staff who deal with any incident shall also be 
recorded. Where known, any offenders name shall also be recorded. This record shall 
be available for inspection by an authorised officer from Reading Borough Council or 
Thames Valley Police upon request and shall be retained for one year.  The record shall 
be signed off by the Designated Premises Supervisor or nominated representative at the 
end of each trading session;  
 
15. A weekly review of the incident register shall also be carried out by the Designated 
Premises Supervisor.  
 
STAFF TRAINING  
 
16. Staff employed to sell alcohol shall undergo training upon induction. This shall 
include, but not be limited to: 
• The premises age verification policy 
• The law relating to underage sales 
• Dealing with refusal of sales 
• Proxy purchasing 
• Recognising valid identity documents 
• Identifying attempts by intoxicated persons to purchase 
alcohol 
•  Identifying signs of intoxication 
• Conflict management 
• How to identify and safeguard vulnerable persons who attend 
and leave the premises 
• Identifying signs of drug usage and prevention 
• Child Sexual Exploitation 
• The four licensing objectives  
 -  Drinks spiking   
 
 
17. Such training sessions are to be documented and refreshed every 12 months.  All 
training sessions are to be documented in English. Records of training shall be kept for 
a minimum of one year and be made available to an authorised officer from Reading 
Borough Council or Thames Valley Police upon request.  
 
AGE VERIFICATION  
 
18. The Premises Licence holder shall display in a prominent position a copy of their 
policy on checking proof of age.  
 
19. The Premises shall at all times operate a Challenge 25 to prevent any customers 
who attempt to purchase alcohol and who appear to the staff member to be under the 
age of 25 years from making such a purchase without having first provided 

Page 60



identification. Acceptable forms of ID for production at the delivery address are a 
passport, a photo card driving licence, a card bearing the ‘PASS’ hologram or Military 
ID (or any other nationally accredited scheme) or any other form or method of 
identification that complies with any mandatory condition that may apply to this 
licence are to be accepted as identification. 
 
20. Posters advertising the Challenge 25 and proof of age policies shall be displayed in 
prominent places in the premises so that they can be seen internally and externally;  
 
21. No person under the age of 18 years will be permitted on the premises after 21:00 
hours without being accompanied by a responsible adult.  
 
22. Prominent, clear notices shall be displayed at every public entrance stating any 
restrictions relating to the admission of children to the premises or other admission 
restrictions.  
 
REFUSAL BOOK  
 
23.  All staff involved in the sale of alcohol shall be trained to record refusals of sales 
of alcohol in a refusals log (whether written or electronic). The log shall contain:  
• Details of the time and date the refusal was made; 
• The identity of the staff member refusing the sale; 
• Any detail or description of the person refused and the reason why. 
• This book /register will be available for inspection by an authorised officer from  
Reading Borough Council or Thames Valley police upon request.  
 
 
PUBWATCH  
 
24. The premises licence holder or nominated representative shall actively participate 
in the town centre Pubwatch scheme should one be operating in the area.  
 
 
TOWN SAFE RADIO  
 
25. The premises licence holder or nominated representative shall participate in the 
Reading Town Safe Radio Scheme when the premises are opened for licensable activities 
Monday to Sunday inclusive.  
 
REMOVAL OF GLASSWARE AND OPEN CONTAINERS  
 
26.No alcohol shall be removed from the premises or consumed outside.  
 
27. All beer and lager to be served in containers made from  made from toughened 
glass.  
 

Page 61



OTHER INITIATIVES 
 
28. The Premises Licence Holder shall actively participate in initiatives set up by 
Thames Valley Police and Reading Borough Council to tackle for example but not limited 
to Anti-Social Behaviour/illegal drugs/public safety issues or similar initiatives.  
 
 
Condition removed. 
 
PLANNING PERMISSION 
 
28. The Premise Licence holder shall not provide any licensable activity at the premises 
in a manner or at times that constitutes a breach of any planning restriction.  
 
(This has been included as we have not been provided documentation regarding lawful 
planning permission for these premises).  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 62



From: Narancic, Peter
To: Julie Quarmby
Cc: Smalley, Robert
Subject: FW: Bowl Central - new premises licence application [IWOV-WORKSITE.FID1485562]
Date: 27 June 2022 11:29:30
Attachments: image001.png

image004.png
image005.png
image006.png

 
 
 
This is it…
 

From: Smyth, Declan (C2107) <declan.smyth@thamesvalley.police.uk> 
Sent: 24 June 2022 09:40
To: Licensing <Licensing@reading.gov.uk>
Cc: Smalley, Robert <Robert.Smalley@reading.gov.uk>; Narancic, Peter <peter.narancic@reading.gov.uk>
Subject: FW: Bowl Central - new premises licence application [IWOV-WORKSITE.FID1485562]
 
This is an EXTERNAL EMAIL. STOP THINK before you CLICK links or OPEN attachments.
 
Dear Licensing,
 
The Thames Valley Police Licensing departments response to Sandra Graham’s email and the proposed conditions submitted as part of the
Thames Valley Police representation for the Bowl Central, Caversham Road.
 
Response to amendments:
 
8. An active search policy shall be put in place to prevent illegal drugs and weapons being brought on to the premises. The policy shall include,
but not be limited to, methods of search, detection, confiscation and disposal and shall be actively operated. The policy shall be in written
format and made available upon request to an authorised officer from Reading Borough Council or Thames Valley Police. Notices shall also be
put in place informing customers that the management reserve the right to conduct an outer body search and/or bag as a condition of entering
the premises.
It is the opinion of Thames Valley Police that all premises should have a policy that addresses the need for public safety and the prevention of
crime and disorder. The policy is a document that will insure best practice and good due diligence at the premises.
It is regrettable that young people feel the need to carry bladed articles and or drugs on their person, but this now a common occurrence. The
proposed condition does not require the premises management or staff to search all customers but it does enforce upon them the need to be
vigilant, reminding them of their responsibilities and right to refuse if the customer is under suspension that would lead to the premises calling
for police assistance.
 
9. Regular checks of high risk areas for drug use (including the toilets) shall be carried out by door staff and premises staff when door staff are
not available. A written record of all checks shall be maintained and made available upon request by an authorised officer from Reading
Borough Council or Thames Valley Police.
This condition forms part of what Thames Valley Police believe to be a minimum level of service in best practice, maintaining high standards
and good due diligence at a premises offering entertainment and alcohol. The area in which the premises is located historically has issues with
drug users gaining access to premises facilities and using them for sales and usage.
 
Door Supervision
 
The current stance is that we at Thames Valley Police would not be willing to amend or remove the DOOR SUPERVISORS proposed
conditions contained within the TVP representation.
The proposed conditions (numbers 3,4,5,6 &7) have been drafted to help in the promotion of the four licensing objectives. On a Friday &
Saturday night the premises will become part of the Reading Night Time Economy, as a preventive tool and responsibility of the premises it
cannot become a drain on the emergency services. All premises of a similar business model have a condition for the need of SIA door
supervisors.
It is the opinion of Thames Valley Police that the presence & visibility of trained SIA security will not only act as a deterrent for crime and
disorder but will also put your customers at ease knowing that security can assist if needed.  
 
Should you need anything further please do not hesitate to contact me.
 
Kind Regards
 

Declan Smyth
 
Declan Smyth C2107
Licensing Officer (Reading)
Police Station,
Castle St,
Reading RG1 7TH.
 
Telephone (Mobile) 07800 703169
Email: declan.smyth@thamesvalley.police.uk
(Office hours: Monday to Thursday 08:00 to 16:00 / Friday 08:00 to 15:30)
 

 
Read our Alcohol Licensing Operational Guidance
 

Page 63

mailto:peter.narancic@reading.gov.uk
mailto:Julie.Quarmby@reading.gov.uk
mailto:Robert.Smalley@reading.gov.uk
mailto:declan.smyth@thamesvalley.police.uk
mailto:Licensing@reading.gov.uk
mailto:Robert.Smalley@reading.gov.uk
mailto:peter.narancic@reading.gov.uk
mailto:declan.smyth@thamesvalley.police.uk
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/ap/b-59584e83/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fforcesserip.sharepoint.com%2Fsites%2Ffiletvgsigsi%2Fps%2FLOCAL%2520POLICING%2FLicensing%2FVisio%2520Licensing%2520frontpage%2520FINAL%25205.pdf&data=05%7C01%7Cdeclan.smyth%40thamesvalley.police.uk%7C5906ef76a1bb448e028708da34c5d78b%7C23de4379957a41a69587165d6c6b4dbd%7C0%7C0%7C637880321562537664%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=xszumtN0ItIx0gNhwyHWH4A6ojIKE1W2Sl%2BUBq719Ok%3D&reserved=0






 
 
 
This is it
 
 

From: Sandra Graham <Sandra.Graham@trethowans.com>
Sent: Monday, June 20, 2022 1:57 PM
To: Narancic, Peter <peter.narancic@reading.gov.uk>
Cc: declan.smyth <declan.smyth@thamesvalley.pnn.police.uk>; Smalley, Robert <Robert.Smalley@reading.gov.uk>
Subject: Bowl Central - new premises licence application [IWOV-WORKSITE.FID1485562]
 
This is an EXTERNAL EMAIL. STOP THINK before you CLICK links or OPEN attachments.
Dear Peter
 
I am grateful for your assistance in discussing this application.  As advised, I am familiar with the area and issues and I did contact Sian some time ago to
discuss proposals as there was some suggestion that there might have been a Premises Licence already in existence for the premises though it subsequently
proved not to be the case.  Equally, we did consider your Statement of Policy and did seek confirmation that the proposed premises were outside the
Cumulative Impact Area which was confirmed. I appreciate the representations from yourself and TVP may be in a standard format but rest assured we did
consider the site, the licensing objectives, s184 Guidance and your licensing Statement of Policy in some detail before applying.  Indeed enquiries with Sian
Richards date back to January.
 
I have discussed the representations from yourself and the Police and if I may group them together as they are very similar, and respond copying in the Police
hopefully we can agree conditions going forward.
 
In dealing firstly with the initial information you requested I now comment as follows:
 

1. It is estimated the proposed capacity of the premises will be around 160
2. It is anticipated that 2 to 3 floor walkers will be engaged at any one time dependent on occupancy levels
3. The applicant has engaged a separate advisor on planning matters and I have been advised that a planning application has been lodged but until that

application has been registered (which is, I am told awaited) there is no specific case officer available to comment and discuss planning proposals
further.  My client is an experienced operator and is aware of all the necessary permissions required in order to proceed and the timescale is such (see
next response) as to allow all matters to be resolved in a sensible time period prior to opening.

4. At the present time the proposed opening is estimated at March 2023
 
Conditions Proposed
 
As a precursor to my comments below, and as advised, my client and I are aware of issues in the Reading area, and are certainly not unfamiliar with the area. 
The site is obviously a good prominent site from the main Caversham Road and faces a busy commercial road whilst accepting and respecting the existence of
the residential areas to the rear of the site.
Whilst the conditions put forward in the representations by yourself and TVP are worded differently to those put forward in the Operating Schedule we hope you
can accept that in the main the aims and objectives are the same, namely to include:

CCTV provision
An Incident Log
A Refusals book
Staff training
Quiet dispersal of patrons
Challenge 25 policy

 
Accordingly, having reviewed with my client those conditions put forward by yourself and TVP, my client is content to accept the wording you and TVP have
requested, if preferred, in respect of:
 

CCTV (your proposed conditions 1 & 2)
Dispersal policy (your proposed conditions 10-13)
Incident register (your proposed conditions 14 – 15)
Staff training (your proposed conditions 16 -17)
Age Verification (your proposed conditions 18-22)
Refusals book (your proposed condition 23)

 
My client will also accept your proposed conditions in respect of:

Pubwatch (your proposed condition 24)
Town Safe Radio (your proposed condition 25)
Other initiatives (your proposed condition 29)

 
Glassware – would you be willing to agree to vary proposed condition 27  to read ‘all beer and lager to be served in containers made from toughened glass’  as
my client is struggling to source toughened glassware for champagne/cocktail style drinking vessels.
 
Search Policy – my client is content to accept proposed condition 9 with regard to regular checking of high risk areas but does not consider that it is appropriate
to have proposed condition 8 on any Premises Licence granted. For a family entertainment venue to undertake personal body searches/bag searches of
patrons attending the premises would be somewhat surprising to patrons attending and indeed my  client feels that this would send the wrong messages about
the type of clientele and would be unwelcoming to the type of customers that are attracted to this style of premises.  The premises are not a high-volume vertical
drinking establishment, they will be run, as the applicant’s other ten-pin bowling centres have always been run, as a relaxed family entertainment venue with
clientele that respect this.
 
Door Supervision
As per my comments above, the premises are proposed to be a family entertainment venue and it is not considered welcoming or appropriate to patrons to
signal that there are door staff required when the premises are not some late night club or drinking establishment.  My client compares his clientele to those that
might attend TGI Fridays (nearly opposite) who are open until midnight with no door supervision requirements.
 
My client has formally amended the terminal hour on the application to 12 midnight (from 1am) on Fridays and Saturdays and in this connection would prefer not
to have a condition relating to door supervision. 
However, my client appreciates the concerns in the Reading area and is a responsible and aware operator, and if this cannot be agreed, and whilst the
premises get established, he would be prepared to agree a condition along the lines that:
 
SIA accredited Door Security to be employed on Friday and Saturday evenings from 22:00 until at least half an hour after the end of permitted hours for the sale
of alcohol on commencement of trading for the first three months of trading following which a  risk assessment will be undertaken to determine whether such
door security is required, thereafter three monthly reviews will be conducted subsequently to risk assess the position.
 
If proposed condition 3 can be amended as above then conditions 4 to 7 can follow with clarification of the below:

Page 64

mailto:Sandra.Graham@trethowans.com
mailto:peter.narancic@reading.gov.uk
mailto:declan.smyth@thamesvalley.pnn.police.uk
mailto:Robert.Smalley@reading.gov.uk


 
Proposed condition 7(c)  - bullet point ‘Training Records’ – is this meant to refer to training given by the Premises Licence Holder or all training as I am
mindful that SIA doorstaff may well be employed via an agency?
I assume that proposed condition 7 (f) and (g) refer to where ( e ) applies ie where Body Worn Video applies and therefore I would request that condition
7 (f) and (g) become 7 (e) (i) and (ii) for clarification that they only apply where BWV is deployed.

 
Whilst we totally accept the necessity to obtain and comply with all necessary planning consents (and my client is in the course of so doing) I would not expect
that conditions relating to planning matters be imposed as a licence condition when there is adequate separate legislation to deal with this and I am hopeful that
now given my comments and our discussions on the matter your proposed condition 28 can be avoided in this respect.
 
I hope we can agree the above and look forward to hearing from you further.
 
I am copying this in to Declan Smyth at TVP in the hope that the above will be acceptable to Thames Valley Police also.
 
Kind regards
 
Sandra Graham
 
 
 
 
 

Sandra Graham 

Consultant
For and on behalf of Trethowans LLP
E: Sandra.Graham@trethowans.com
M: +44 7881 343978
F: +44 (0) 1202 680470

Trethowans LLP, 5 Parkstone Road, Poole, Dorset, BH15 2NL
Switchboard: +44 (0) 1202 673 071

 

Please note that we are withdrawing from the DX postal system.  Please amend your records forthwith so that future correspondence is sent to our postal address.

Authorised and Regulated through The Faculty Office of the Archbishop of Canterbury in relation to Notarial matters

Join our mailing list, click here to keep up to date with news and events.

Our response to Coronavirus (COVID‑19) ‑ looking out for our people and clients, click here to read more.
Disclaimer
Trethowans LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales, registered number OC342356 and is authorised and regulated by the Solicitors Regulation Authority, whose
rules can be found at www.sra.org.uk. 

Registered office: London Road, Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP1 3HP. Registered VAT number: 188 0928 24. The word "partner" is used to refer to a member of Trethowans LLP. List of
Partners Terms of Business

This email and its attachments are intended for the above named only and may be confidential. If they have come to you in error you must take no action based on them, nor must you copy or
show them to anyone. Please reply to this email and highlight the error.

We will always treat your privacy with the utmost respect. To view our privacy notice please click here.

Please be aware of Cybercrime. Trethowans bank account details will not change during the course of a matter/transaction. Trethowans LLP will not take any responsibility if you transfer
money to a wrong account. If you receive any indication that any of Trethowans bank details have changed please telephone us using our main switchboard number and speak to your usual
contact at Trethowans to get clarification before sending us any funds. Trethowans take no responsibility for monies you transfer into the wrong bank account.

 

********************************************************************************* 
This email contains information which is confidential and may also be privileged. It is for the exclusive use of the addressee(s) and any views or opinions
expressed within are those of the originator and not necessarily those of the Force. If you are not the intended recipient(s) please note that any form of
distribution, copying or use of this email or the information contained is strictly prohibited and may be unlawful. If you have received this
communication in error please forward a copy to informationsecurity@thamesvalley.police.uk and to the sender. Please then delete the email and
destroy any copies of it. DO NOT use this email address for other enquiries as it will not be responded to, nor any action taken upon it. If you have a non-
urgent enquiry, please call the Police non-emergency number 101. If it is an emergency, please call 999. Thank you. 
*********************************************************************************

Page 65

mailto:Sandra.Graham@trethowans.com
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.trethowans.com%2F&data=05%7C01%7Cdeclan.smyth%40thamesvalley.police.uk%7Ca699f914d5f94cda494b08da53a90ecb%7C23de4379957a41a69587165d6c6b4dbd%7C0%7C0%7C637914282805119305%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=oYjZQOPlMiP4ww3MesgdwWjSET1QHZxdyxf1CPUEv%2B8%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.linkedin.com%2Fcompany%2F124784%2F&data=05%7C01%7Cdeclan.smyth%40thamesvalley.police.uk%7Ca699f914d5f94cda494b08da53a90ecb%7C23de4379957a41a69587165d6c6b4dbd%7C0%7C0%7C637914282805119305%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=mCIls6B6xLSbw7Kgr9z4gfav%2FZjFT%2B40P41F6Zfpb9Y%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.facebook.com%2Ftrethowansllp&data=05%7C01%7Cdeclan.smyth%40thamesvalley.police.uk%7Ca699f914d5f94cda494b08da53a90ecb%7C23de4379957a41a69587165d6c6b4dbd%7C0%7C0%7C637914282805119305%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=TO%2FGpxu8B8hMPgxquq5AADThFOpShOk9Dg0JIZVemZ4%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ftwitter.com%2Ftrethowansllp&data=05%7C01%7Cdeclan.smyth%40thamesvalley.police.uk%7Ca699f914d5f94cda494b08da53a90ecb%7C23de4379957a41a69587165d6c6b4dbd%7C0%7C0%7C637914282805119305%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=zoUxVo5OsB129X0b9%2Bg4B%2BhMevSzjG4bSHrXvTVvIpc%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.trethowans.com%2Fjoin-our-mailing-list&data=05%7C01%7Cdeclan.smyth%40thamesvalley.police.uk%7Ca699f914d5f94cda494b08da53a90ecb%7C23de4379957a41a69587165d6c6b4dbd%7C0%7C0%7C637914282805119305%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=lGenMH%2FFfCGsovqb9k%2FmQiCqhLdSZcaglKQ0BAOrvOA%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.trethowans.com%2Fnews%2Fcovid-19-message-from-trethowans&data=05%7C01%7Cdeclan.smyth%40thamesvalley.police.uk%7Ca699f914d5f94cda494b08da53a90ecb%7C23de4379957a41a69587165d6c6b4dbd%7C0%7C0%7C637914282805119305%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=7czAEQpYtQmBWSTkyC%2FsZe%2BomA06eBbBB5x4%2BxmcisU%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.trethowans.com%2Fnews%2Fcovid-19-message-from-trethowans&data=05%7C01%7Cdeclan.smyth%40thamesvalley.police.uk%7Ca699f914d5f94cda494b08da53a90ecb%7C23de4379957a41a69587165d6c6b4dbd%7C0%7C0%7C637914282805275523%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=siGnNjSxxViR%2BKYsChb%2B9MkSu8sjKB0yETuv0X6kWqM%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.sra.org.uk%2F&data=05%7C01%7Cdeclan.smyth%40thamesvalley.police.uk%7Ca699f914d5f94cda494b08da53a90ecb%7C23de4379957a41a69587165d6c6b4dbd%7C0%7C0%7C637914282805275523%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=T8Q66PrnvW8Jz%2FGmP0vuGhn5YB7c%2BbNhFl2Ml8lnCHA%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.trethowans.com%2Fpartners&data=05%7C01%7Cdeclan.smyth%40thamesvalley.police.uk%7Ca699f914d5f94cda494b08da53a90ecb%7C23de4379957a41a69587165d6c6b4dbd%7C0%7C0%7C637914282805275523%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=XhDLQqKWNoh%2BvwI29pS%2F6tWSrPUPE0rhsTp9EHVYqO4%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.trethowans.com%2Fpartners&data=05%7C01%7Cdeclan.smyth%40thamesvalley.police.uk%7Ca699f914d5f94cda494b08da53a90ecb%7C23de4379957a41a69587165d6c6b4dbd%7C0%7C0%7C637914282805275523%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=XhDLQqKWNoh%2BvwI29pS%2F6tWSrPUPE0rhsTp9EHVYqO4%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.trethowans.com%2Fgeneral-terms-of-business%2F&data=05%7C01%7Cdeclan.smyth%40thamesvalley.police.uk%7Ca699f914d5f94cda494b08da53a90ecb%7C23de4379957a41a69587165d6c6b4dbd%7C0%7C0%7C637914282805275523%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=O02JHUS0wwp74VO3%2BUBNReYs1%2BYE%2BcQ754N%2BvRDAU9c%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.trethowans.com%2Fprivacy-policy%2F&data=05%7C01%7Cdeclan.smyth%40thamesvalley.police.uk%7Ca699f914d5f94cda494b08da53a90ecb%7C23de4379957a41a69587165d6c6b4dbd%7C0%7C0%7C637914282805275523%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=iPKjUPmMvn1TEqIxpFFO%2F%2BAQERYBz1iKI4IozBc0YHQ%3D&reserved=0
mailto:informationsecurity@thamesvalley.police.uk


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Application for the Grant of a Premises Licence, Bowl Central, 65 Caversham Road, Reading
	Appendix RS-2 - Licensing Rep.pdf
	18.05.2022 
	Licensing Team Representation
	Officer : Peter Narancic Senior Licensing and Enforcement Officer
	Grant Application 
	KTO (READING) LTD
	Bowl Central
	65 Caversham Road
	Reading 
	RG1 8AD
	Licensable Activities and Hours applied for:
	Supply of Alcohol (On licence only)
	Sunday to Thursday from 1000hrs to 0000hrs 
	Friday and Saturday from 1000hrs to 0100hrs
	From the start of permitted hours on New Year's Eve to 0100hrs on New Year's Day each year
	Provision of Recorded Music (Indoors)
	Sunday to Thursday from  1000hrs to 0000hrs
	Friday and Saturday from  1000hrs to 0100hrs
	Late Night Refreshment (Indoors)
	Sunday to Thursday from  2300hrs to 0000hrs
	Friday and Saturday from   2300hrs to 0100hrs
	From 23.00 hours on New Year's Eve to 0100hrs on New Year's Day each year
	Hours Open to the Public
	Sunday to Thursday from 1000hrs to 0030hrs 
	Friday and Saturday from 1000hrs to 0130hrs
	When looking to grant a premises licence, the licensing authority and other Responsible Authorities have to determine what the likely effect of granting any licence would be on the promotion of the licensing objectives. This is consistent with section 18 (6) and 59 (1) of the Licensing Act 2003. The licensing objectives are prospective as outlined below and given all of the above reasons and the rationale given for them below, respectfully submit that the application be refused if the applicant is unwilling to accept more robust conditions, than those offered by the applicant. 
	The Licensing team have taken some time to look at this application in some detail, as it is located within a challenging area in regards crime and disorder.  Additional information was sought from the applicant regarding staffing levels, the capacity and planning permissions.  However, at the time of drafting this representation, no response was received.
	7.7 Generally, any licensed premises looking to open past 11pm (2300hrs) in a residential area will need to demonstrate clearly in their operating schedule that public nuisance will not result from later operation. As part of the operating schedule, applicants should read the Secretary of State’s Guidance, this policy and any other relevant document and ensure that robust measures are included in any application.
	7.8 Premises that wish to provide regulated entertainment may be subject to additional conditions to ensure that residents are not disturbed. This may include the use of sound limiters; keeping doors and windows closed and restricting the hours when music is played.
	7.12 The licensing authority will seek the input of the Council’s Environmental Protection and Nuisance team when looking at measures that may be appropriate for the prevention of public nuisance. This will include taking cognisance of any representations that are submitted as part of the application process or any enforcement action they have taken under their own legislation – such as noise abatement notices.
	7.16 There are concerns about noise, nuisance, crime and disorder and anti social    behaviour in respect of premises open late and providing hot food and drink. Operators and potential applicants of late night refreshment venues wishing to open past 11pm will need to demonstrate that there are suitable policies and procedures in place to mitigate any undermining of the licensing objectives from their operation. If suitable practices and policies are not put in place and it is the belief of the Authority that crime and disorder and/or a public nuisance is likely to occur due to the late operation of late night refreshment premises, then the Authority will look at reducing the hours and or (subject to relevant representations being received) removing late night refreshment from an application in its entirety.
	7.17  The Authority – whilst taking each application on it’s own merits – is unlikely to grant excessive hours to any premises if it believes it will undermine the promotion of the licensing objectives in the locality where it proposes to operate. Applicant’s should ensure that their application takes cognisance of the information available – including crime data – and ensure that the operating scheduled is tailored accordingly. Premises within the Council’s town centre Cumulative Impact Area will also need to ensure that they rebut the presumption of refusal against applications in that area.
	8.1 The protection of children from harm includes the protection of children from moral, psychological and physical harm. This includes not only protecting children from the harms associated directly with alcohol consumption but also wider harms such as exposure to strong language and sexual expletives (for example, in the context of exposure to certain films or adult entertainment). The Secretary of State’s Guidance to the Licensing Act 2003 also makes clear that the authority must also consider the need to protect children from sexual exploitation when undertaking licensing functions.
	8.2  Applicants must be clear in their operating schedules about the activities and     times at which the events would take place to help determine when it is not appropriate for children to enter the premises. Consideration should also be given to the proximity of premises to schools and youth clubs so that applicants take appropriate steps to ensure that advertising relating to their premises, or relating to events at their premises, is not displayed at a time when children are likely to be near the premises.
	 Conditions Consistent with the Operating Schedule
	Close Circuit Television (CCTV) 
	1. The Premises Licence holder shall provide a closed-circuit television system (CCTV) at the premises. The CCTV system installed shall be maintained in effective working order and shall be in operation during licensing hours. All recordings made by the CCTV system shall be retained and stored in a suitable and secure manner for a minimum of 31 days. There shall be at least one camera positioned at each entry and exit point to monitor any external areas to the premises and of such quality to enable identification of the recorded person in any light. Data recordings shall be made immediately for viewing to an authorised officer from Reading Borough Council or Thames Valley Police together with facilities for viewing upon request, subject to the provisions of the Data Protection Act and GDPR legislation.  At least one member of staff on the premises at any time during operating hours shall be trained to access and download material from the CCTV system. Any password protection code to enable access to the recording system shall always be available  to enable access to recordings for viewing or downloading images. 
	a) The designated premises supervisor or nominated representative are required to contact both Thames Valley Police at licensing@thamesvalley.pnn.police.uk and the Licensing Team at Reading Borough Council at licensing@reading.gov.uk
	within 24 hours of when they become aware that the CCTV system is not functioning correctly, outlining the reason if known and when it is likely to be repaired and in due course confirmation once the CCTV system is repaired. 
	2. Signage advising that CCTV is in use shall be positioned in prominent positions.
	DOOR SUPERVISORS 
	3. Subject to the conditions below SIA accredited security staff will be employed on Friday and Saturday (and on New Year’s Eve when this does not fall on a Friday and Saturday) from 20:00 until at least half an hour after the end of permitted hours for the sale of alcohol. 
	4. On all other occasions the provision of SIA accredited security staff will be risk assessed. A copy of the risk assessment shall be kept on the premises and made available for inspection by authorised officers from Reading Borough Council and Thames Valley police on request. 
	5. The requirement for SIA accredited security staff to be employed by virtue of condition 3. above at times when Government lockdown regulations are in force relating to the Covid 19 pandemic (or similar pandemics) shall be suspended. During this time the requirement for door supervisor shall be risk assessed 
	6. The risk assessment shall be reviewed and updated at least once every 6 months. 
	7. Where SIA accredited security staff are employed on the premises the following conditions will apply: 
	(a) The SIA accredited security staff shall be employed solely for vetting, regulating, controlling and supervising patrons whilst entering and whilst on the premises and to ensure the maintenance of good order, public safety and internal security. 
	(b) A register shall be kept at the premises to record the details
	of the SIA accredited security staff, the number of persons on the premises and any incidents. The register shall be produced to authorised officers of Reading Borough Council and Thames Valley Police upon request. 
	(c) The register shall contain the following details: 
	• Full SIA registration number.
	• Date and time that the SIA security staff commenced duty, countersigned by the Designated Premises Supervisor or Duty Manager. • Date and time that the SIA security staff finished work, countersigned by the
	Designated Premises Supervisor or Duty Manager.
	• Any occurrence or incident of interest involving crime and
	disorder or public safety must be recorded giving names of the SIA accredited security staff involved.
	• Training records
	• ID Photo and scan of SIA badge
	• A record will be kept on site of all SIA checks, on the
	validity of all door staff licences.
	• The name, home address and registration number of all SIA accredited security staff working at the premises;
	• The SIA  accredited security staff register must be kept at the premises and be available for inspection by Thames Valley Police or an authorised officer from Reading Borough Council and shall be retained for a period of 1 Year. 
	(d) SIA accredited security staff shall wear clothing that makes
	them clearly identifiable to patrons and staff of the premises, and identifiable on CCTV in all lights 
	(e) Where SIA accredited security staff are employed at the
	premises and are deployed with digitally recording Body Worn Video (BWV) the BWV will be used to record any incidents which occur inside or outside of the premises involving customers, prospective customers or any staff member that impact on any of the four licensing objectives. 
	(f) Data recordings shall be made immediately available to an authorised officer from  Reading Borough Council or Thames Valley Police together with facilities for viewing upon request, subject to the provisions of the Data Protection Act. 
	(g) A BWV weekly log must be kept at the premises – This will record all the incidents reported by the security team and what actions the premises management have taken to promote the four licensing objectives.
	SEARCH POLICY
	8. An active search policy shall be put in place to prevent illegal drugs and weapons being brought on to the premises. The policy shall include, but not be limited to, methods of search, detection, confiscation and disposal and shall be actively operated. The policy shall be in written format and made available upon request to an authorised officer from Reading Borough Council or Thames Valley Police. Notices shall also be put in place informing customers that the management reserve the right to conduct an outer body search and/or bag as a condition of entering the premises.
	9. Regular checks of high risk areas for drug use (including the toilets) shall be carried out by door staff and premises staff when door staff are not available. A written record of all checks shall be maintained and made available upon request by an authorised officer from Reading Borough Council or Thames Valley Police. 
	DISPERSAL POLICY 
	10. A written dispersal policy for controlling the closing of the premises and the departure of customers at the conclusion of the licensed activities shall be put in place and shall be actively operated. This policy shall be made available to an authorised officer from Reading Borough council or  Thames Valley Police.
	11. Clearly legible and suitable notices shall be displayed at all exits requesting customers to respect the needs of local residents and to leave the premises and area quietly; 
	12.  At the conclusion of licensable activities staff will be available to assist with dispersing customers from the premises and the immediate vicinity. 
	13. Any person who refuses to leave the area and is identified as causing or potentially about to cause antisocial behaviour, will be a subject to a ban from the premises. A record of banned individuals shall be maintained in the premises and all staff made aware of the persons who are currently banned so that entry may be refused. This record shall be available to an authorised officer from Reading Borough Council or Thames Valley Police upon request and shall be retained for one year. 
	INCIDENT REGISTER 
	14. All incidents which impact on any of the four licensing objectives shall be recorded in a register kept at the premises for this purposed. The names of the person recording the incident and those members of staff who deal with any incident shall also be recorded. Where known, any offenders name shall also be recorded. This record shall be available for inspection by an authorised officer from Reading Borough Council or Thames Valley Police upon request and shall be retained for one year.  The record shall be signed off by the Designated Premises Supervisor or nominated representative at the end of each trading session; 
	15. A weekly review of the incident register shall also be carried out by the Designated Premises Supervisor. 
	STAFF TRAINING 
	16. Staff employed to sell alcohol shall undergo training upon induction. This shall include, but not be limited to:
	• The premises age verification policy
	• The law relating to underage sales
	• Dealing with refusal of sales
	• Proxy purchasing
	• Recognising valid identity documents
	• Identifying attempts by intoxicated persons to purchase
	alcohol
	•  Identifying signs of intoxication
	• Conflict management
	• How to identify and safeguard vulnerable persons who attend
	and leave the premises
	• Identifying signs of drug usage and prevention
	• Child Sexual Exploitation
	• The four licensing objectives 
	 -  Drinks spiking  
	17. Such training sessions are to be documented and refreshed every 12 months.  All training sessions are to be documented in English. Records of training shall be kept for a minimum of one year and be made available to an authorised officer from Reading Borough Council or Thames Valley Police upon request. 
	AGE VERIFICATION 
	18. The Premises Licence holder shall display in a prominent position a copy of their policy on checking proof of age. 
	19. The Premises shall at all times operate a Challenge 25 to prevent any customers who attempt to purchase alcohol and who appear to the staff member to be under the age of 25 years from making such a purchase without having first provided identification. Acceptable forms of ID for production at the delivery address are a passport, a photo card driving licence, a card bearing the ‘PASS’ hologram or Military ID (or any other nationally accredited scheme) or any other form or method of identification that complies with any mandatory condition that may apply to this licence are to be accepted as identification.
	20. Posters advertising the Challenge 25 and proof of age policies shall be displayed in prominent places in the premises so that they can be seen internally and externally; 
	21. No person under the age of 18 years will be permitted on the premises after 21:00 hours without being accompanied by a responsible adult. 
	22. Prominent, clear notices shall be displayed at every public entrance stating any restrictions relating to the admission of children to the premises or other admission restrictions. 
	REFUSAL BOOK 
	23.  All staff involved in the sale of alcohol shall be trained to record refusals of sales of alcohol in a refusals log (whether written or electronic). The log shall contain: 
	• Details of the time and date the refusal was made;
	• The identity of the staff member refusing the sale;
	• Any detail or description of the person refused and the reason why.
	• This book /register will be available for inspection by an authorised officer from  Reading Borough Council or Thames Valley police upon request. 
	PUBWATCH 
	24. The premises licence holder or nominated representative shall actively participate in the town centre Pubwatch scheme should one be operating in the area. 
	TOWN SAFE RADIO 
	25. The premises licence holder or nominated representative shall participate in the Reading Town Safe Radio Scheme when the premises are opened for licensable activities Monday to Sunday inclusive. 
	REMOVAL OF GLASSWARE AND OPEN CONTAINERS 
	26. No alcohol shall be removed from the premises or consumed outside. 
	27. Drinks shall be served in containers made from toughened glass (tempered glassware). 
	PLANNING PERMISSION
	OTHER INITIATIVES
	29. The Premises Licence Holder shall actively participate in initiatives set up by Thames Valley Police and Reading Borough Council to tackle for example but not limited to Anti-Social Behaviour/illegal drugs/public safety issues or similar initiatives. 
	Background Information
	RBC Licensing Policy 
	https://www.reading.gov.uk/business/licences/alcohol-and-entertainment-licences/premises-licence/licensing-policy/
	Local Crime Stats
	https://www.streetcheck.co.uk/crime/rg17ay
	https://www.streetcheck.co.uk/crime/rg18ew
	https://www.streetcheck.co.uk/crime/rg18ey
	https://www.streetcheck.co.uk/crime/rg17hu
	https://www.streetcheck.co.uk/crime/rg11lg
	Local Press
	https://www.readingchronicle.co.uk/news/19773806.reading-town-centre-among-crime-ridden-england-wales/

	Appendix RS-3 - TVP Rep.pdf
	THAMES VALLEY POLICE
	 Division/Station : Reading Police Station Licensing Dept
	 From : C2107 Declan Smyth                                                To : Reading Borough Council
	 Ref :  KTO (Reading) LTD, 65 Caversham Road, Reading, Berkshire RG1 8AD   Date :19th May 2022 
	Subject  :
	Objection
	To whom it may concern
	I C2107 Declan Smyth on behalf of the Chief Officer of Thames Valley Police wish to formally object to the proposed application for a premises licence submitted by KTO (Reading) LTD, 65 Caversham Road, Reading, Berkshire RG1 8AD as it is believed that this application in its current format will undermine the four licensing objectives with specific regard to that of the prevention of public nuisance and the prevention of crime & disorder.
	The proposal before the Sub-Committee is for:
	 Provision Of Recorded Music (Indoors)
	Sunday to Thursday From 10:00hrs until 24:00hrs
	Friday & Saturday From 10:00hrs until 01:00hrs
	 Late Night Refreshment
	Sunday to Thursday From 23:00hrs until 24:00hrs
	Friday & Saturday From 23:00hrs until 01:00hrs
	 Supply Of Alcohol (On the premises)
	Sunday to Thursday From 10:00hrs until 24:00hrs
	Friday & Saturday From 10:00hrs until 01:00hrs
	 Hours Premises Are Open To The Public
	Sunday to Thursday From 10:00hrs until 00:30hrs
	Friday & Saturday From 10:00hrs until 01:30hrs
	The operating schedule within the application form contains some proposed conditions but does not contain sufficient measures wherein we can be satisfied that the four licensing objectives will be actively promoted. The applicant intends to operate the premises as a ten-pin bowling centre providing 7 lanes and ancillary facilities including provision of food and a small bar and lounge area.
	Paragraph 8.41 to 8.49 of the Secretary of States Guidance issued under Sec 182 Licensing Act 2003 states:-
	8.41 In completing an operating schedule, applicants are expected to have regard to the statement of licensing policy for their area. They must also be aware of the expectations of the licensing authority and the responsible authorities as to the steps that are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives, and to demonstrate knowledge of their local area when describing the steps they propose to take to promote the licensing objectives. Licensing authorities and responsible authorities are expected to publish information about what is meant by the promotion of the licensing objectives and to ensure that applicants can readily access advice about these matters. However, applicants are also expected to undertake their own enquiries about the area in which the premises are situated to inform the content of the application.
	8.42 Applicants are, in particular, expected to obtain sufficient information to enable them to demonstrate, when setting out the steps they propose to take to promote the licensing objectives, that they understand:
	• the layout of the local area and physical environment including crime and disorder hotspots, proximity to residential premises and proximity to areas where children may congregate;
	• any risk posed to the local area by the applicants’ proposed licensable activities; and
	• any local initiatives (for example, local crime reduction initiatives or voluntary schemes including local taxi-marshalling schemes, street pastors and other schemes) which may help to mitigate potential risks.
	8.43 Applicants are expected to include positive proposals in their application on how they will manage any potential risks. Where specific policies apply in the area (for example, a cumulative impact policy), applicants are also expected to demonstrate an understanding of how the policy impacts on their application; any measures they will take to mitigate the impact; and why they consider the application should be an exception to the policy.
	8.44 It is expected that enquiries about the locality will assist applicants when determining the steps that are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. For example, premises with close proximity to residential premises should consider what effect this will have on their smoking, noise management and dispersal policies to ensure the promotion of the public nuisance objective. Applicants must consider all factors which may be relevant to the promotion of the licensing objectives, and where there are no known concerns, acknowledge this in their application.
	8.45 The majority of information which applicants will require should be available in the licensing policy statement in the area. Other publicly available sources which may be of use to applicants include:
	• the Crime Mapping website;
	• Neighbourhood Statistics websites;
	• websites or publications by local responsible authorities;
	• websites or publications by local voluntary schemes and initiatives; and
	• on-line mapping tools.
	8.46 While applicants are not required to seek the views of responsible authorities before formally submitting their application, they may find them to be a useful source of expert advice on local issues that should be taken into consideration when making an application. Licensing authorities may wish to encourage co-operation between applicants, responsible authorities and, where relevant, local residents and businesses before applications are submitted in order to minimise the scope for disputes to arise.
	8.47 Applicants are expected to provide licensing authorities with sufficient information in this section to determine the extent to which their proposed steps are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives in the local area. Applications must not be based on providing a set of standard conditions to promote the licensing objectives and applicants are expected to make it clear why the steps they are proposing are appropriate for the premises.
	8.48 All parties are expected to work together in partnership to ensure that the licensing objectives are promoted collectively. Where there are no disputes, the steps that applicants propose to take to promote the licensing objectives, as set out in the operating schedule, will very often translate directly into conditions that will be attached to premises licences with the minimum of fuss.
	8.49 For some premises, it is possible that no measures will be appropriate to promote one or more of the licensing objectives, for example, because they are adequately covered by other existing legislation. It is however important that all operating schedules should be precise and clear about the measures that are proposed to promote each of the licensing objectives.
	Paragraph 6.24 to 6.26 of the Reading Borough Council Licensing Policy (effective from: 22nd October 2018 until 21st October 2023) states:-
	Alcohol led bars and clubs with regulated entertainment – General Approach to conditions
	6.27 The licensing authority is of the opinion that premises that are alcohol led; provide limited seating for customers; provide little food and provide entertainment facilities have the strongest potential to undermine the promotion of the licensing objectives. The licensing authority believes that venues that encourage up right vertical drinking and the sale of alcohol – often at cheap prices – leads to a negative impact on the town and only serves to promote drunkenness and crime and disorder. Any applicant who wishes to operate such a venue will have to demonstrate that it’s proposed use does not undermine the promotion of the licensing objectives and the authority would expect any operating schedule to contain stringent policies and procedures to achieve this. Measures such as CCTV, employment of door supervisors and the use of a club scan device will be expected as a minimum requirement. Door staff will also be expected to wear high visibility jackets and armbands so that they can be easily identified as well utilising – where appropriate – body worn video to help promote the prevention of crime and disorder licensing objective. The use of breathalysers is also to be encouraged in venues that are alcohol led and should – where appropriate – be advertised as a condition of entry to a licensed premises – particularly given the current prevalence for pre-loading.
	Licensed Premises in Residential Areas
	7.6 When dealing with applications and issuing licences, the authority is likely to impose stricter conditions on premises operating in residential areas if it considers it appropriate and proportionate to do so. This will apply to all premises types.
	7.7 Generally, any licensed premises looking to open past 11pm (2300hrs) in a residential area will need to demonstrate clearly in their operating schedule that public nuisance will not result from later operation. As part of the operating schedule, applicants should read the Secretary of State’s Guidance, this policy and any other relevant document and ensure that robust measures are included in any application.
	7.8 Premises that wish to provide regulated entertainment may be subject to additional conditions to ensure that residents are not disturbed. This may include the use of sound limiters; keeping doors and windows closed and restricting the hours when music is played.
	7.9 Premises with outdoor areas such as beer gardens and smoking areas may also be subject to further restrictions in regard to their operation and use.
	7.10 Where any outside area is used for drinking and/or smoking – including the public highway outside of a licensed premises – and complaints of public nuisance or noise are received the authority will consider controls to limit the disturbance.
	7.11 Premises that are planning to put on events that involve regulated entertainment may be required to provide the authority with a detailed event management plan of that event which may include a detailed noise risk assessment.
	17.12 The licensing authority will seek the input of the Council’s Environmental Protection and Nuisance team when looking at measures that may be appropriate for the prevention of public nuisance. This will include taking cognisance of any representations that are submitted as part of the application process or any enforcement action they have taken under their own legislation – such as noise abatement notices.
	Thames Valley Police believe that this application including the proposed operating schedule and hours of operation regarding the sale of alcohol will undermine the four licensing objectives. The applicant has not sufficiently taken into account concerns relating to public nuisance and crime and disorder within the local area and in our opinion not therefore provided sufficient steps to promote the four licensing objectives. 
	If the applicant, KTO (READING) LTD agrees to the conditions (listed below) being placed onto the premises licence the Thames Valley Police would be willing to withdraw their representation.
	Thames Valley Police submit the following licence conditions for the consideration of the licensing sub-committee which we feel are appropriate in order to promote the four licensing objectives:-
	Close Circuit Television (CCTV) 
	1. The Premises Licence holder shall provide a closed-circuit television system (CCTV) at the premises. The CCTV system installed shall be maintained in effective working order and shall be in operation during licensing hours. All recordings made by the CCTV system shall be retained and stored in a suitable and secure manner for a minimum of 31 days. There shall be at least one camera positioned at each entry and exit point to monitor any external areas to the premises and of such quality to enable identification of the recorded person in any light. Data recordings shall be made immediately for viewing to an authorised officer from Reading Borough Council or Thames Valley Police together with facilities for viewing upon request, subject to the provisions of the Data Protection Act and GDPR legislation.  At least one member of staff on the premises at any time during operating hours shall be trained to access and download material from the CCTV system. Any password protection code to enable access to the recording system shall always be available to enable access to recordings for viewing or downloading images. 
	a) The designated premises supervisor or nominated representative are required to contact both Thames Valley Police at licensing@thamesvalley.police.uk and the Licensing Team at Reading Borough Council at licensing@reading.gov.uk
	within 24 hours of when they become aware that the CCTV system is not functioning correctly, outlining the reason if known and when it is likely to be repaired and in due course confirmation once the CCTV system is repaired. 
	2. Signage advising that CCTV is in use shall be positioned in prominent positions.
	DOOR SUPERVISORS 
	3. Subject to the conditions below SIA accredited security staff will be employed on Friday and Saturday (and on New Year’s Eve when this does not fall on a Friday and Saturday) from 20:00 until at least half an hour after the end of permitted hours for the sale of alcohol. 
	4. On all other occasions the provision of SIA accredited security staff will be risk assessed. A copy of the risk assessment shall be kept on the premises and made available for inspection by authorised officers from Reading Borough Council and Thames Valley police on request. 
	5. The requirement for SIA accredited security staff to be employed by virtue of condition 3. above at times when Government lockdown regulations are in force relating to the Covid 19 pandemic (or similar pandemics) shall be suspended. During this time the requirement for door supervisor shall be risk assessed 
	6. The risk assessment shall be reviewed and updated at least once every 6 months. 
	7. Where SIA accredited security staff are employed on the premises the following conditions will apply: 
	(a) The SIA accredited security staff shall be employed solely for vetting, regulating, controlling and supervising patrons whilst entering and whilst on the premises and to ensure the maintenance of good order, public safety and internal security. 
	(b) A register shall be kept at the premises to record the details of the SIA accredited security staff, the number of persons on the premises and any incidents. The register shall be produced to authorised officers of Reading Borough Council and Thames Valley Police upon request. 
	(c) The register shall contain the following details: 
	• Full SIA registration number.
	• Date and time that the SIA security staff commenced duty, countersigned by the Designated Premises Supervisor or Duty Manager. 
	• Date and time that the SIA security staff finished work, countersigned by the Designated Premises Supervisor or Duty Manager.
	• Any occurrence or incident of interest involving crime and disorder or public safety must be recorded giving names of the SIA accredited security staff involved.
	• Training records
	• ID Photo and scan of SIA badge
	• A record will be kept on site of all SIA checks, on the validity of all door staff licences.
	• The name, home address and registration number of all SIA accredited security staff working at the premises;
	• The SIA  accredited security staff register must be kept at the premises and be available for inspection by Thames Valley Police or an authorised officer from Reading Borough Council and shall be retained for a period of 1 Year. 
	(d) SIA accredited security staff shall wear clothing that makes them clearly identifiable to patrons and staff of the premises, and identifiable on CCTV in all lights 
	(e) Where SIA accredited security staff are employed at the premises and are deployed with digitally recording Body Worn Video (BWV) the BWV will be used to record any incidents which occur inside or outside of the premises involving customers, prospective customers or any staff member that impact on any of the four licensing objectives. 
	(f) Data recordings shall be made immediately available to an authorised officer from Reading Borough Council or Thames Valley Police together with facilities for viewing upon request, subject to the provisions of the Data Protection Act. 
	(g) A BWV weekly log must be kept at the premises – This will record all the incidents reported by the security team and what actions the premises management have taken to promote the four licensing objectives.
	SEARCH POLICY
	8. An active search policy shall be put in place to prevent illegal drugs and weapons being brought on to the premises. The policy shall include, but not be limited to, methods of search, detection, confiscation and disposal and shall be actively operated. The policy shall be in written format and made available upon request to an authorised officer from Reading Borough Council or Thames Valley Police. Notices shall also be put in place informing customers that the management reserve the right to conduct an outer body search and/or bag as a condition of entering the premises.
	9. Regular checks of high risk areas for drug use (including the toilets) shall be carried out by door staff and premises staff when door staff are not available. A written record of all checks shall be maintained and made available upon request by an authorised officer from Reading Borough Council or Thames Valley Police. 
	DISPERSAL POLICY 
	10. A written dispersal policy for controlling the closing of the premises and the departure of customers at the conclusion of the licensed activities shall be put in place and shall be actively operated. This policy shall be made available to an authorised officer from Reading Borough council or Thames Valley Police.
	11. Clearly legible and suitable notices shall be displayed at all exits requesting customers to respect the needs of local residents and to leave the premises and area quietly; 
	12.  At the conclusion of licensable activities staff will be available to assist with dispersing customers from the premises and the immediate vicinity. 
	13. Any person who refuses to leave the area and is identified as causing or potentially about to cause antisocial behaviour, will be a subject to a ban from the premises. A record of banned individuals shall be maintained in the premises and all staff made aware of the persons who are currently banned so that entry may be refused. This record shall be available to an authorised officer from Reading Borough Council or Thames Valley Police upon request and shall be retained for one year. 
	INCIDENT REGISTER 
	14. All incidents which impact on any of the four licensing objectives shall be recorded in a register kept at the premises for this purposed. The names of the person recording the incident and those members of staff who deal with any incident shall also be recorded. Where known, any offenders name shall also be recorded. This record shall be available for inspection by an authorised officer from Reading Borough Council or Thames Valley Police upon request and shall be retained for one year.  The record shall be signed off by the Designated Premises Supervisor or nominated representative at the end of each trading session; 
	15. A weekly review of the incident register shall also be carried out by the Designated Premises Supervisor. 
	STAFF TRAINING 
	16. Staff employed to sell alcohol shall undergo training upon induction. This shall include, but not be limited to:
	• The premises age verification policy
	• The law relating to underage sales
	• Dealing with refusal of sales
	• Proxy purchasing
	• Recognising valid identity documents
	• Identifying attempts by intoxicated persons to purchase alcohol
	• Identifying signs of intoxication
	• Conflict management
	• How to identify and safeguard vulnerable persons who attend and leave the premises
	• Identifying signs of drug usage and prevention
	• Child Sexual Exploitation
	• The four licensing objectives 
	• Drinks spiking  
	17. Such training sessions are to be documented and refreshed every 12 months.  All training sessions are to be documented in English. Records of training shall be kept for a minimum of one year and be made available to an authorised officer from Reading Borough Council or Thames Valley Police upon request. 
	AGE VERIFICATION
	18. The Premises Licence holder shall display in a prominent position a copy of their policy on checking proof of age. 
	19. The Premises shall at all times operate a Challenge 25 to prevent any customers who attempt to purchase alcohol and who appear to the staff member to be under the age of 25 years from making such a purchase without having first provided identification. Acceptable forms of ID for production at the delivery address are a passport, a photo card driving licence, a card bearing the ‘PASS’ hologram or Military ID (or any other nationally accredited scheme) or any other form or method of identification that complies with any mandatory condition that may apply to this licence are to be accepted as identification.
	20. Posters advertising the Challenge 25 and proof of age policies shall be displayed in prominent places in the premises so that they can be seen internally and externally; 
	21. No person under the age of 18 years will be permitted on the premises after 21:00 hours without being accompanied by a responsible adult. 
	22. Prominent, clear notices shall be displayed at every public entrance stating any restrictions relating to the admission of children to the premises or other admission restrictions. 
	REFUSAL BOOK 
	23.  All staff involved in the sale of alcohol shall be trained to record refusals of sales of alcohol in a refusals log (whether written or electronic). The log shall contain: 
	• Details of the time and date the refusal was made;
	• The identity of the staff member refusing the sale;
	• Any detail or description of the person refused and the reason why.
	• This book /register will be available for inspection by an authorised officer from Reading Borough Council or Thames Valley police upon request. 
	PUBWATCH 
	24. The premises licence holder or nominated representative shall actively participate in the town centre Pubwatch scheme should one be operating in the area. 
	TOWN SAFE RADIO 
	25. The premises licence holder or nominated representative shall participate in the Reading Town Safe Radio Scheme when the premises are opened for licensable activities Monday to Sunday inclusive. 
	REMOVAL OF GLASSWARE AND OPEN CONTAINERS 
	26. No alcohol shall be removed from the premises or consumed outside. 
	27. Drinks shall be served in containers made from toughened glass (tempered glassware). 
	PLANNING PERMISSION
	28. The Premise Licence holder shall not provide any licensable activity at the premises in a manner or at times that constitutes a breach of any planning restriction. 
	OTHER INITIATIVES
	29. The Premises Licence Holder shall actively participate in initiatives set up by Thames Valley Police and Reading Borough Council to tackle for example but not limited to Anti-Social Behaviour/illegal drugs/public safety issues or similar initiatives. 

	Appendix Central Bowl Letter
	Appendix TVP Comments Bowl Central




